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UNIONINSURANCE
Board of Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Union Insurance Company P.1.5.C. we have the pleasure in presenting our Report on
the performance of the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31* December 2022.
Despite the continued challenges faced by local insurers and the global econ omy, the Company's financial results continued
to improve and achieved a steady performance during 2022.

Key performance indicators were as follows:
* In 2022, the company recorded a Gross Premium of AED 868 million, compared to AED 900 million in 2021,

* Inaccordance with Central Bank regulations, the com pany continues to maintain technical reserves as recommended
by the actuary.

* The Company’s Financial Strength Rating of B+ (Good) and Issuer Credit Rating of BBB- (Good) were affirmed by the
International Credit Rating Agency A. M. Best. According to AM Best's Press Release on 15 December 2022 - "these
ratings reflect Union's Balance Sheet strength, which A.M. Best categorises as strong, as well as its adequate operating
performance, limited business profile and appropriate enterprise risk management”.

2022 Financial results
* The Underwriting Profit for the year 2022 amounted to AED 17 million (2021: AED 19.5 million).

e The company reported an investment profit of AED & million compared to a profit of AED 5.4 million for the year
2021.

* The Net Profit for the year 2022 amounted to AED 18.3 million, compared to AED 13.2 million for the year 2021,
» Total Equity of the Company increased to AED 254 million in 2022 from AED 235 million at the end of the 2021,
* The Company's total assets are AED 1.9 hillion at the end of 2022, co mpared to AED 2 billion at the end of 2021.

* Dividends
The Board of Directors decided to submit a recommendation to the General Assembly not to distribute cash
dividends for the year 2022 in order to enhance shareholders' equity and also the financial solvency of the
company on an ongoing basis. -

The Management take this opportunity to thank all the shareholders and customers for their continued support and also
expres s their sincere appreciation to Company managers and staff for their dedication and hard work.

For and on behalf of Union Insurance Co. P.J.S.C.

Chairman of the Board
MNasser Rashid Abdulaziz Almoalla
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Union Insurance Company P.J.5.C. (the “Company’”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of income, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the sccompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Aunditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have
fulfilled out other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Eey audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022, These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters,

@ 2023 Grant Tharnton UAE - Al rights réterved, Grant Thornton UAE reprasents 5l gal loenses under which Grant Thornton Audit snd Arcaunting ransthorntan.ae
Limited Corporaticn, A British Virgin Islands {"8V17] registered Branch, operate in the UAE. Thesa licenses include the Abu Dhabl, Dubal and Sharjah

based branches — Grant Thormton Audit and Accounting Limiged - registoned with the Abu Dhabi Glokal Market — Grant Thornton Aodit and fccounting

Limited Corporation B8] = registered with the Dubal Financlal Services Authority.

“Grant Thornton® refers 1o the brand under which the Grant Tharaton member fitma provide sssurance, Lae and advisary servites 1o thelr elients and /e
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agents of, and do ot obligate, one another and are not liable for one anather’s acts or omissons.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.8.C (continued)
Eey audit matters {continued)

ii) Valuation of insurance contract Habilities

The estimation of liabilities adising from insurance contracts amounting to AED 1,008,371 thousand (2021: AED
1,105,249 thousand) for insurance contract liabilities such as outstanding claims, incurred but not reported claims,
unallocated loss adjustment expenses and unearned premium reserve, as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements,
involves a significant degree of judgement. These liabilities are based on the best estimated ultimate cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at a given date, whether reported or not, together with the related claims handling costs and
the pattern of risk distribution over the coverage period. Actuarial computations have been used ro determine these
provisions. Underlying these computations are a number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the expected
settlement amount and settlement patterns of claims. Since the determination ufmh:pmﬂﬂm requires the expertise
of an external valuation expert who incorporates significant assumptions, judgements and estimations, the valuation
of these liahilities was sipnificant to our audit.

We assessed management’s caleulations of the insurance contraet lishilities by perfomming the following procedures:
*  We understood the governance process in place 1o determine the insurance contract lishilices;
. Weumdthcmduiyingfﬂupmydmmm&nmmmﬂnm

® We applied our industry knowledge and expedence and we compared the methodology, models and assumptions used
against recognized sctuarial practices;

*  We assessed the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the managernent actuarfal specialist;

*  We reperformed computations on selected classes of business, particularly focusing on the largest and most uncertain
rescrves then re-computed claims reserves to those booked by management, and sought to understand any significant
differences;

*  For the remaining classes we evaluated the methodology and assumptions, or performed a diagnostic check to identify
and follow up any anomalies;

& We involved our own actuarial specialist to assist us in performing our procedires in this ares; and

®  We checked the appropriateness of the disclosures made in relation to the valuation of insutance contract Habilities
included in the financial statements.

ii) Provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsurance receivables

As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the Company’s insurance and reinsurance receivables amounted to
AED 334.6 million at 31 December 2022 (2021; AED 352.8 million) and the related provision for impairment
amounted to AED 64 million (2021: AED 61 million) as at that date,
We consider the calculation of provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsurance receivables as a key andit
matter because of the significance of the insurance and reinsurance receivables balance (representing 18% of the total
assets as at 31 December 2022), the related estimation uncertainty of provision for doubtful debts to the financial
statements and the significance of the judgements used In applying the requirements of IAS 39 to the assessment of
the adequacy of provision for doubtful debts.
As part of our sudit procedures, we:

® opbtained and tested the reliability of the aging report for the insurance and reinsurance receivable balances and

perﬁ:m:eﬂﬂitfaﬂmng:
verified the historical provision for bad debts to actual write offs;

- considered adequacy of doubtful debts provision for significant customers by taking into account
specific credit risk assessments for each customer based on days past due, the existence of any disputes
over the balance outstanding, the history of settlement of receivables and the existence of any liabilities
with the same counterparties which reduce the net exposure; and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.8.C (continued)
Key audit matters (continued)

ii) Provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsurance receivables (continued)

= discussed with management and reviewed correspondence, where relevant, to identify any disputes
and assess whether the bad debt provisions are appropristely assessed.
* reviewed the Company’s provisioning policy and ensured it is consistently applied.
®* checked the appropriateness of the disclosures made in relation to the provision for doubtful debts of
insurance and reinsurance receivables in the financial statements,

Other marter

The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who
expressed unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements on 28 March 2022,

Other information

The Board of Directors and management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the annusl report of the Company. We have obtained the Directors” report, prior to the date of this auditor's report
and the remaining of the annual report is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Char opinion on the finandial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is matedally inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conelude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard,

When we read the Company's Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance and take appropriate actions in sccordance
with ISAs.

Responsibilites of the Management and the Those Charged with Govemance for the Financial Statemnents

Mansgement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and their prepasation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE
Federal Law Neo. (32) of 2021, and UAE Federal law No. 6 of 2007 {as amended), and for such intemal control as
management determines s necessary to enable the preparation of finandal statements that are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial staternents, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governanee are responsible for oversceing the Company’s financial reporting process,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Sharcholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.5.C (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or ertor, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonsble
assurance is 2 high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered marerial if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users tiken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the sudit. We also:

®  Identfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial staternents, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
approprate to provide a basis for our opinion. The dsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentations, ot the override of internal control.

®*  Obtin an understanding of internal control relevant w the andit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstences, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncerminty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a poing concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are réquired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our suditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue 45 & going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the finandal statements represent the undetlying ransactions and events in a manner thar achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate to those charged with povernance regarding, among other marters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during
our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pedod and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure abour the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that  matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.5.C (continued)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that:

)
ij

vi)

We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

The financial statements have been mdmmpljr,innﬂmﬂ:dﬂmspmwidlﬂmlppﬂuﬁcpmﬁmmuf
the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;

The Company has maintained proper books of account;
the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of sccount of the Company;

Note 6 to the financial statements discloses investment in securities by the Company dufing the finaneial year ended
31 December 2022,

Mote 11 to the financial staternents discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the terms under
which they were conducted; and

based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come 1o our attention which causes us to
belicve that the Company has, during the financial year ended 31 December 2022, contravened any of the applicable
p:mixiuusofﬂ}:UﬁEFn:l:rﬂlerNu.@adMi,m.ihﬂﬂduﬂfﬂxmwhﬁmHmtmﬁaﬂyaﬂ‘mg
its activities or its financial position as ar 31 December 2022; and

vii) The Company did not make any social conttibution during the year ended 31 Decamber 2022,
Further, as required by the U.AE. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 (as amended) and the related Financial Regulations for

Insurance

ies, we report that we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary

for the purpose of our aodit.

P.O. Box: 1968
Bharjah - U.A.E,
".'%‘ "

AR NTOR g
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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UNIONINSURANCE
Board of Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Union Insurance Company P.1.5.C. we have the pleasure in presenting our Report on
the performance of the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31* December 2022.
Despite the continued challenges faced by local insurers and the global econ omy, the Company's financial results continued
to improve and achieved a steady performance during 2022.

Key performance indicators were as follows:
* In 2022, the company recorded a Gross Premium of AED 868 million, compared to AED 900 million in 2021,

* Inaccordance with Central Bank regulations, the com pany continues to maintain technical reserves as recommended
by the actuary.

* The Company’s Financial Strength Rating of B+ (Good) and Issuer Credit Rating of BBB- (Good) were affirmed by the
International Credit Rating Agency A. M. Best. According to AM Best's Press Release on 15 December 2022 - "these
ratings reflect Union's Balance Sheet strength, which A.M. Best categorises as strong, as well as its adequate operating
performance, limited business profile and appropriate enterprise risk management”.

2022 Financial results
* The Underwriting Profit for the year 2022 amounted to AED 17 million (2021: AED 19.5 million).

e The company reported an investment profit of AED & million compared to a profit of AED 5.4 million for the year
2021.

* The Net Profit for the year 2022 amounted to AED 18.3 million, compared to AED 13.2 million for the year 2021,
» Total Equity of the Company increased to AED 254 million in 2022 from AED 235 million at the end of the 2021,
* The Company's total assets are AED 1.9 hillion at the end of 2022, co mpared to AED 2 billion at the end of 2021.

* Dividends
The Board of Directors decided to submit a recommendation to the General Assembly not to distribute cash
dividends for the year 2022 in order to enhance shareholders' equity and also the financial solvency of the
company on an ongoing basis. -

The Management take this opportunity to thank all the shareholders and customers for their continued support and also
expres s their sincere appreciation to Company managers and staff for their dedication and hard work.

For and on behalf of Union Insurance Co. P.J.S.C.

Chairman of the Board
MNasser Rashid Abdulaziz Almoalla
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Union Insurance Company P].5.C. (the “Company”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of income, stmtement of

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinicn, the accompanying financial statements pive a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Finandial Statements
section nfwrrr.pmt.W:mhdmdmtufth:&mpmyhmr&mmn&thhmaﬁnnﬂﬁﬂmsmiﬂdsm
for Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requircments that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of TESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinion.

Eey audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matrers,

& 2013 Grant Thornton UAE - Adl rights reserved. Grant Thornton LAE represents all legsl loenses under which Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting grantthormton.as

Limited Corporation, A British Virgin islands [“8¥1") registered Branch, operate in the UAL. These licentes include the Abu Dhabi, Dubai and Sharjah
based branches — Grant Tharnton Audit and Accounting Limited = regstared with the Abu Dhabi Global Market — Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting
Limited Conporation BV - registered with the Dubai Financial Services Authority.

“Grant Thornton® refers totha brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clents andfor
refers to one or more member firmd, & the contest reguires. GTIL and the member firm s are not a workdwide partnership. GTIL and gach membar firm
Is & soparate Imgal entty. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients, GTIL and | &1 member firms are nob
sgents of, and do not obligate, cne another and are not lizble for one another’s acts or omissions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.8.C (continued)
Eey audit matters (continued)

ii) Valvuation of insurance contract liabilities

The estimation of liabilities arising from insurance contracts amounting to AED 1,008,371 thousand (2021: AED
1,105,249 thousand) for insurance contract liabilities such as outstanding claims, incurred but not reported claims,
unallocated loss adjustment expenses and unearned premium reserve, as disclosed in note 14 to the financial satements,
involves a significant degree of judgement. These liabilities are based on the best estimated ultimate cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at 2 given date, whether reported ot not, together with the related claims handling costs and
the pattern of risk distribution over the coverage petiod. Amnﬂcnmpuunmhnwbc:nuﬂadmdetmmcﬂmm
provisions. Underlying these computations are a number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the expected
setﬂ:mentnmuuntmdsﬂﬂmmtp:mnmfduma Since the determination of such a provision requites the expertise
of an external valustion expert who incorporates si t assumptions, judgements and estimations, the valuation
of these liabilities was significant to our audit.

Owur audit procedures, among others, included:

Wie assessed management’s calculations of the insurance contract liabilities by performing the following procedures:

* We understood the governance process in place to determine the insurance contract liabilites;

*  We tested the undedying Company data to source documentation;

® We applied our industry knowledge and experence and we compared the methodology, models and assumptions used
against recognized actarial practices;

*  We assessed the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the management actuarial specialist;

* We reperformed computations on selected classes of business, particularly focusing on the largest and most uncertain
reserves then re-computed claims reserves to those booked by management, and sought to understand any significant
differences;

®  For the remaining classes we evaluated the methodology and assumptions, or performed a diagnostic check to identify
and follow up any anomalies;

*  We involved our own actuarial specialist to assist us in performing our procedures in this area; and

® We checked the appropriateness of the disclosures made in relation to the valuation of insurance contract liabilities
included in the financial statements.

ii) Provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsutance receivables

As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the Company’s insurance and reinsurance receivables amounted to
AED 334.6 million at 31 December 2022 (2021: AED 3528 million) and the related provision for impairment
amounted to AED 64 million (2021; AED 61 million) as at that date,
We consider the calculation of provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsurance receivables as a key audit
matter because of the significance of the insurance and reinsurance receivables balance (representing 18% of the total
assets as at 31 December 2022), the related estimation uncertainty of provision for doubtful debts to the financial
statements and the significance of the judgements used in applying the requirerents of IAS 39 to the assessment of
the adequacy of provision for doubtful debts.
As part of our audit procedures, we:

& obtained and tested the reliability of the aging report for the insutance and reinsurance receivable balances and

pcrt’ormad the following
verified the historical provision for bad debts to actual write offs;

-  considered adequacy of doubtful debts provision for significant customers by taking into account
specific credit risk assessments for each customer based on days past due, the existence of any disputes
over the balance outstanding, the history of settlement of receivables and the existence of any liabilities
with the same counterparties which reduce the net exposure; and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C (continued)
Key audit matters (continued)

ii) Provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsurance receivables (continued)

- discussed with management and reviewed correspondence, where relevant, to identify any dispures
and assess whether the bad debt provisions are appropriately assessed.
* reviewed the Company’s provisioning policy and ensured it is consistently applied.
® checked the appropriateness of the disclosures made in relation to the provision for doubtful debts of
insurance and reinsurance receivables in the financial statements.

Other matter

The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who
expressed unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements on 28 March 2022.

Ocher information

The Board of Directors and management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the annual report of the Company. We have obtained the Directors’ report, prior to the date of this auditor’s report
and the remaining of the annual report is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our andit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

When we read the Company’s Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take approprate actions in accordance
with ISAs.

Responsibilities of the Management and the Those Charged with Govemnance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE
Federal Law MNo. (32) of 2021, and UAE Federal law No. 6 of 2007 (as amended), and for such internal control as
management determines 5 necessary to enable the preparation of finandal statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the finandal statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 2 poing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with povernance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.



o Grant Thornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Ohar objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the financial statements as a whole are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an aundit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatemnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materal if,
individually or in the agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

®  Jdemify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®*  QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may case
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue a5 a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Ewaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.
We communicate to those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key sudit marters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,



o Grant Thornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C (continued)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that:

j
i)

i)

vil)

We have obtained all the information we considered necessaty for the purposes of our audit;

The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Law Mo, (32) of 2021;

The Company has maintained proper books of accoung
the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the Company;

Note 6 to the financial statements discloses investment in securities by the Company during the financial year ended
31 December 2022

Note 11 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the terms under
which they were conducted; and

based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which causes us to
believe that the Company has, during the financial year ended 31 December 2022, contravened any of the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, or, its Asticles of Association, which would materally affect
its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2022; and

viif) The Company did not make any social conttibution duting the year ended 31 December 2022.

Further, as required by the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 (as amended) and the related Financial Regulations for
hummmComp«nMwmpoﬁﬁuwhwnhnhdﬂﬁnhfumﬁmmdmphmﬁmwmnﬁmﬂmmw
for the purpose of our andit.

Grant n
Farouk Mohamed

=

hon

P.O. Box: 1968
Sharjah - UAE.

Registration No: 86
Sharjah, 20 March 2023



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2022

Naotes 2022 01

’ )

o AED'000 AED000
Property and equipment 3 46,929 T0 446
Intangible assets 17 8,723 14,574
Statutory deposit 7 10,000 10,000
Right-of-usc assets 21 6,861 637
Unit linked asscts 6.3 349,613 368,887
Investment sccuritics 6 76,779 47,888
Reinsumnce contract assets 14 753,776 831,514
Bank deposits with orginal maturities of more than three
months 8.2 68,888 205,965
Insurance and other receivables 16 338,607 356,202
Cash and cash equivalents 81 205,667 91,881
TOTAL ASSETS 1,885,843 1,997,994
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 9 330,939 330,939
Statutory reserve 101 18,020 16,187
Special reserve 10.2 18,020 16,187
Fair walue reserve 10.3 166 136
Reinsurance reserve 10.4 7,406 4 BES
Accumulated Iosses {120,728) (132,867)
Total Equity 253,623 235,485
Liahilities
Provision for employees’ end of scevice indemnity 23 14,424 12,873
Insurance conrract liabilites 14 1,008,371 1,105,249
Insurance and other payables 18 259,612 275,500
Payables to polieyholders of unit-linked produets 13 349,613 368,887
Total liabilities 1,632,020 1,762,509
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,885,843 1,997,994

These financial statements were approved for issuc by the Board of Directors on 20 Macch 2023 and signed

on their behalf by: Q\
Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Almolla Abdel Mutaleb M TT M Aljaede
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

The nc:umﬁ:[_:;.‘i:l.l_g_ notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these ﬁnﬂ:ml_nlsmbLTrinB
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Union Insurance Company P.].5.C.

Statement of income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Gross written premiums
Reinsurance premiums ceded
Net retained premiums

Net change in unearned premiums, mathematical reserve and

policyholders’ reserve
Net carned premium

(Gross commission earned

Total underwriting income

UNDERWRITING EXPENSES

Gross claims incurred

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers

Met claims incurred

Commission incurred

Administrative expenses

Other operational costs related to underwriting activities

Total underwriting expenses

UNDERWRITING PROFIT

Interest income
Other investment loss

Met investment Income

Provision for doubtful debts

Board of directors’ fees

Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

MNotes

21
21

14.1
14.1
14.1
162
19
19.3

2022 2021
AED000 AED'000
868,317 900,083
(504,146) (523,839)
364,171 376,244
(46,798) (76,571)
317,373 299,673
72,406 92,014
389,779 391,687
(419,777 (685,140
269,668 533,257
(150,109) (151,883)
(82,706) (91,062)
(91,061) (90,884)
(48,937) (38,406)
(372,813) (372.235)
16,966 19,452
6,149 6,530
(155) (1,101)
5,994 5,429
(2,977) (10,062)
(1,655) (1,600)
18,328 13,219
0.055 0,040

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Union Insurance Company P.J.5.C.

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

{tems thar will not be reclassiffed subsequenty to
profit or loss

Change in fair value of investments held at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year

Tatal comprehensive income for the year

2022 2021
AED000 AED'000
18,328 13219

10 237

10 222

18,338 13,441

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.].5.C.

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Profic for the year
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amorrization of property and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Realised pain on disposal of investments at FVTPL
Unrealised loss on investments at FVTPL
Provision for doubtful debts

Work in progress written off

Interest income

Dividend income

Gain on sale of property and equipment

Interest on lease liabilides

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Change in

Reinsurance contract assets

Insurance and other receivables

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance and other payables

Unit linked assets

Unit linked liabilities

Cash penerated from operating activities
Employees’ end of service indemnity paid

Nert cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of investments held at FVTPL (excluding unir linked assers)

Proceeds from disposal of investrments held at FVTPL (excluding unit linked

assets)
Proceeds from disposal of investments held at FVTOCI
Interest received
Dividends received

Maturities of fixed deposits with banks with original maturities greater than

three months
MNet cash generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities
MNet cash used in financing activites

Met change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

MNon cash transactions

Rights of use asset

Lease liability

Transter from CWIP to property and equipment and intangible assets
Transfer to property and equipment and intangible assets from CWIP

MNotes 2022 2021
AED'000  AED'000

18,328 13,219

8,460 7,906

221 3,016 2,962
20 (3,173) (2.917)
20 5,289 978
16.1 2,977 10,062
52 2,134 2,387
20 (6,149) (6,530)
20 (3,018) (327)
(1) (27)

222 413 110
23 2,885 3,081
31,161 30,704

77,138 (343,249)

14,618 27,856

(96,878) 364,832

(22,711) (83,317)

(19,279  (82,089)

19,274 82,089

3,928 (3,174)

23 (1,334) (1,170)
2,59 (4,344)

(1,228) (1,990)

3 27

6.5 (67,165) (8,490)
A 36,168 76,319
6.5 - 7,002
6,149 5,701

3,018 527

137,077 15,207

114,022 94,393

222 (2,830) (2,726)
(2,830) (2,726)

113,786 87,323

8.1 91,881 4,558
8.1 205,667 91,881
9,240 4,066
(9,240) (4,027)

1,516 5,032
(1,516) (5,032)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1 General information

Union Insurance Company P.].5.C. (the "Company") is incorporated as a public shareholding company and operates
in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE™) under a trade license issued by the Government of Dubai. The Company is
registered under the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, relating to commercial companies. The Company is subject
to the regulations of UAE. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended, conceming establishment of the Insurance
Authority and Organisation of its Operations, and is registered with the Insurance Companies Register of the Central
Bank of the UAE (“CBUAE") under registration number 67. The Company's registered corporate office is at Single
Business Tower, Sheikh Zayed Road, P.O. Box 119227, Dubai, United Arab Emirates ("UAE"). The Company’s
ordinary shares are listed on the Abu Dhahi Securities Exchange (“"ADX").

The principal activity of the Company is the writing of insurance of all types including life assurance. The Company
operates through its Head Office in Dubai and Branch Offices in Abu Dhabi, Dubai, Sharjah, Ajman, and Ras Al
Khaimah,

Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies (the “New Companies Law™) was issued on 20 Seprember
2021 with an effective date of 2 January 2022, and will entirely replace Federal Law No. 2 of 2015, as amended, on
Commercial Companies, as amended. The Company has twelve months from the effective date to comply with the
provisions of the New Companies Law. The Company is carrently in the process of amending the statutory
documents, to reflect the changes required due to application of the UAE Federal law No. (32) of 2021.

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released the Federal Law No. 47 of 2022 on the Taxation of
Corporations and Businesses (the Law) to enact a Federal corporate tax (CT) regime in the UAE. The CT regime
will become effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2023, The of the Company are currently
in the process of amending the starutory documents, to reflect the changes required due to application of the UAE
Federal law No. (32) of 2021.

A rate of 9% will apply to taxable income exceeding a particular threshold to be prescribed by way of a Cabinet
Decision (expected to be AED 375,000 based on information released by the Ministry of Finance), a rate of 0% will
apply to taxable income not exceeding this threshold and a rate of 0% on qualifying income of free zone entities.

L Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")

21 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are effective from 1
January 2022

Following relevant new amendments to existing standards were issued by the 1ASB, which are effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 do not have a significant impact on the Company's financial results or
position include:

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS J)

COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 {(Amendments to IFRS 16)
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds Before Intended Use (Amendments to LAS 16)
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)

Annual Improvements (2018-2020 Cycle):

- Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter (Amendments to IFRS 1)

- Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Liabilities (Amendments o IFRS Y)
- Lease Incentives (Amendments to IFRS 16)

- Taxation in Fair Value Measurements {Amendments to TAS 41).

This amendment did not have a significant impact on these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.].5.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™)
{Continued)

22 Standards issued but not yer effective

The TASB has issued the following standards or amended standards and interpretations which apply from the dates
shown. The Company has decided not to early adopt any of these standards, amendments or interpretations where this

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (1 January 2023)

Under IFRS 9, all financial assets will be measured either at amortised cost or fair value and the basis of classificadon
will depend on the business model and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial assets. In relation to the
impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires the use of an expected credit loss model, as opposed to the incurred
credit loss model required under LAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The expected credit
loss model will require the Company to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit sk since initial recognition.

The Company has taken advantage of the temporary exemption granted to insurers in IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
from applying IFRS 9 until 1 January 2023 as a result of meeting the exemption criteria.

IFRS 9 will be implemented at the same time as the new insarance contracts standard (IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts)
effective from 1 January 2023, During the year, the Company continued its implementation activities in respect of IFRS
9 and expects to continue to value the majonty of its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition, either as a result of these financial assets being managed on a fair value basis or as a result of using the fair
value option to irrevocably designate the assets at fair value through profit or loss. A number of additional disclosures
will be required by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures as a result of implementing IFRS 9.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2023)

Once effective IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 the current insurance contracts standard and it is expected to significantly
change the way the Company measures and reports its insurance contracts. The overall objective of the new standard
is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for users, [FRS 17
applies to insurance contracts (including reinsurance contracts) an entity issues, reinsurance contracts an enty holds
and investrnent contracts with discretionary participation features an entity issues,

The scope of IFRS 17 for the Company is materially consistent with that of IFRS 4. Investment contracts will be
measured under IFRS 9. IFRS 17 requires that contracts are divided into groups for the purposes of recognition
and measurement. Portfolios of contracts are identified by grouping together contracts which have similar dsks and
are managed together. These groups are then further divided into groups based on their expected profitability.

Contracts which are onerous at inception cannot be grouped with contracts which are profitable at inception.
Contracts which are issued more than one year apart are not permitted to be included within the same group,
although there is some relief from this requirement for business in-force at the date of transition under the
transitional arrangements,

The standard introduces three measurement approaches, the general model measurement (‘GMM), the variable fee
approach (VFA’) and the premium allocation approach (PAA’), all of which are applicable to the Company’s
business, The main features of these models are the measurement of an insurance contract as the present value of
expected future cash flows including acquisition costs, plus an explicit risk adjustment, remeasured at each reporting
period using current assumptions, and a contractual service margin ('CSM’).

The risk adjustment represents the compensation the Company requires for bearing the uncertsinty about the
amount and timing of cash flows thart arise from non-financial risk as the obligations under the insurance contract
are fulfilled,

13



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")
{Continued)

22 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2023) (continued)

The CSM represents the uneamned profit of a group of insurance contracts and is recopnised in profit or loss as the
insurance service is provided to the customer using coverage units. Coverage units are a measurement of the quantam
of service provided across the life of the contract and are used to measure the service provided in the reporting period
and release a corresponding amount of profit to the income statement. If a group of contracts becomes loss-making
after inception, the loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Under the general model the CSM is adjusted for non-economic assumption changes relating to futute pedods. For
certain contracts with participating features the varable fee approach is applied, this allows changes in economic
assumptions and experience to adjust the CSM as well as non-economic assumptions, reflecting the varisble nature of
the entity’s eamings drven by investment returns,

IFRS 17 requires the standard to be applied retrospectively. Where this is assessed as impracticable the standard allows
the application of a modified retrospective approach or a fair value approach to determine the contractual service
matgin. The measurement principles set out in IFRS 17 will significantly change the way in which the Company
measures its insurance contracts and investment contracts with discreionary pamicipation features (DPF?), and
associated reinsurance contracts.

These changes will impact the pattern in which profit emerges when compared to IFRS 4 and add complexity w
valuation processes, data requirements and assumption setting. The introduction of IFRS 17 will simplify the
presentation of the statement of financial position. It requires the presentation of groups of insurance (of reinsurance)
contracts that are in an asset position separately from those in a lability position. The presentation of the income
statement will change more significantly with IFRS 17 setting out how components of the profitability of contracts are
disaggregated into an insurance service result and insurance finance income/expenscs. [FRS 17 also requires extensive
disclosures on the amounts recognised from insurance contracts and the nature and extent of risks arising from them.

Premium allocation approach: The Premium allocation approach is an optional simplified measurement model in IFRS
17 that is available for insurance and reinsurance contracts that meet the eligibility crteria.

The Company expects that it will apply the PAA to most contracts in the Non-life segment because the following
criteria are expected to be met at inception.,

Insurance contracts and loss-oecurring reinsurance contracts: The coverage period of each contract in the group is one
year or less.

Risk-attaching reinsurance contracts: The Company reasonably expects that the resulting measurement of the asset for
remaining coverage would not differ materially from the result of applying the accounting policies described above.

Under IFRS 17, the measurement of a group of contracts includes all of the future cash flows within the boundary of
each contract in the group. Compared with the current accounting, the Company expects that for certain contracts the
IFRS 17 contract boundary requirements will change the scope of cash flows to be included in the messuremnent of
existing recognised contracts, as opposed to future unrecopnised contracts. The period covered by the premiums within
the contract boundary is the ‘coverage period’, which is relevant when applying a number of requirements in IFRS 17.

Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the activities of selling, underwriting and starting a group of contracts that
are directly attributable to the portfolio of contracts to which the group belongs. Under IFRS 17, for Life contracts,
insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated to groups of contracts using systematic and rational methods based on
the total premiums for each group.

Under IFRS 17, only insurance acquisition cash flows that arise before the recognition of the related insurance contracts
are recognised as separate assets and tested for recoverability, whereas other insurance acquisition cash flows are
included in the estimates of the present value of future cash flows as part of the measurement of the related insurance
CONMTActs.
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the vear ended 31 December 2022

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS")
(Continued)

22 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2023) (continued)

Impact assessment — Life Insurance

Under IFRS 17, all profits will be recognised in profit or loss over the lifetime of the contracts, and this will primarily
be diven by the timing of the recognition in profit or loss of the CSM as services are provided and the risk adjustment
for non-financial risk as the related risk expires. The Company expects that, even though the total profit recognised
over the lifetime of the contracts will not change, it will emerge more slowly under IFRS 17. This is mainly because, for
certain Life contracts, all profits are currently recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of the contracts. The
different timing of profit recognition will result in an increase in liabilities on adoption of IFRS 17 because a portion of
profits previously recognised and accumulated in equity under IFRS 4 will be included in the measurement of the
liabilities under IFRS 17.

The changes in the lighilities for Life contracts on transition to IFRS 17 can mainly be attributed to the following,

Changes from IFRS 4 Impact on equity on
transition w [FRS 17

‘The estimates of the present value of future cash flows will increase as a result Decrease
inclusion of all discretionary benefits in the estimates of the future cash flows in
meeasuring the labilities for investment contracts with DPF a reduction in the
discount rates because of the IFRS 17 requirements to measure future cash flows
using current discount rates.

"The risk adjustment for non-finandal risk under IFRS 17 will be lower than the dsk Increase
margin under IFRS 4 as a result of (a) recalibration of the measurement techniques
to conform with the IFRS 17 requirements, (b) exclusion of financial nsk and general
operational risk from the IFRS 17 dsk adjustment for non-financial dsk and (c)
consideration of diversification benefit between Company entities.

A CSM, determined using the transition approaches, will be recognised for the Deectease
unearned profit for these contracts.

Impact assessment — Non-Life Insurance

Although the PAA is similar to the Company’s current accounting treatment when measuring liabilities for remaining
coverage, the following changes are expected in the accounting for Non-life contracts.

Changes from IFRS 4 Impact on equity on
transidon to [FRS 17
Under IFRS 17, the Company will discount the future cash flows when measuring Increase

liabilities for incurred claims, unless they are expected to occur in one year or less
from the date on which the claims are incurred, The Company does not currently
| discount such future cash flows.

IFRS 17 requires the fulfilment cash flows to include a risk adjustment for non- Decrease
financial risk. This is not explicitly allowed for currently.
The Company’s accounting policy under IFRS 17 to expense eligible insurance Dectrease

acquisition cash flows when they are incurred differs from the current practice
under which these amounts are recognised separately as deferred acquisition costs.

15



Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
22 Standards issned but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2023) (continued)

The Company’s implementation project continued through 2022 with a focus on finalising methodologies and
developing the operational capabilities required to implement the standard including data, systems and business
processes. The current focus is on embedding the operational capabilities and determining the transition of financial
position and comparatives required for 2023 reporting.

Since the implementation project is currently ongoing, management believes that it is impractical to determine the
amount of the effect of IFRS 17 in the current period,

Other Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company
include:
®  (Classification of Liahilities a5 Corrent or Non-current (Amendments m LAS 1)
*  Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to TAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement Z)
* Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Lisbilities Arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments
o IAS 12)
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to [AS 1)
Definition of Accountng Estimates (Amendments to TAS 8)

These standards, amendments and intetpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the financial
statements in the period of inital application.

3. Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented.

31 Staternent of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS)
and applicable requirements of Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 (as amended), Concerning the Establishment of the
Insurance Authority & Organization of the Insurance Operations, the Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 Conceming
commercial companies and Insurance Authority Board Decision No. (23) of 2019 Conceming Instruction
Organizing Reinsurance Operations.

32 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment properties and financial
instruments that have been measured at revalued amounts, amortised cost or fair value as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
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Union Insurance Company P.].5.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Insurance contracts

331 Product classification

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance tisk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those
contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance tisk from another party (the
policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain furure event (the insured event)
adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant
insurance risk of at least 10%, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not oceur.

Some insurance and investment contracts contain discretionary participating features (DPF) which entitle the
contract holder to receive, as a supplement to the standard guaranteed benefits, addirional benefits or bonuses:

*  That are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;
*  Whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the insurer; and
*  That are contractually based on:

(i) the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract;
(i) realised / unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer; or,
{iii} the profit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues that contract.

Under IFRS 4, DPF can be either treated as an element of equity or as a liability or can be split between the two
elements. The Company's policy is to treat all DPF as a liability within insurance or investment contract liabilities,

The policyholder bears the financial risks relating to some insurance contracts or investment contracts, Such
products are usually unit-linked contracts.

3.3.2 Recognition and measurement

Insurance contracts are classified into three main categories, depending on the duration of risk and whether or not
the terms and conditions are fixed.

(i) Short-term insurance contracts

These contracts are medical, motor, property, marine, engineering, general accident as well as short-duration life
insurance contracts.

Short-duration life insurance contracts protect the Company's customers from the consequences of events such as,
but not limited to, death or disability.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Insurance contracts {continued)

3.32 Recognition and measurement (continued)
{i) Short-term insurance contracts (continued)

In respect of short term insurance contracts, preminm are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) proportionately
over the period of coverage with the exception of marine cargo, where it is assumed that each policy is earned fully
in the quarter following the quarter in which it was written; hence the unearned premium reserve (“UPR™) at the
end of a particular quarter will be equal to the written premium in that quarter and engineering where UPR is
calculated on increasing risk basis as required in the Financial Regulations issued by the CBUAE (formerly, the IA).
The portion of the premium received in respect of in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the end of the
reporting period is reported as the uneamed premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of the

commission.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the statement of income as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract holders. They include
direct claims settlement costs which arise from events that have occurred up to the end of the reporting period even
if they have not been reported to the Company. The Company does not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims.
Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the
Company and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost
of more complex claims that may be affected by external factors (such as court decisions). Insurance contract
liabilities also include reinsurance share of third party recoveries that are outstanding but not yet confirmed for the
by the respective insurance mmpﬂrucs against the recoveries of claims that were alrﬁ.d:,r received by the Company
Once the third party recoveries are confirmed, they are reclassified to “Due to reinsurance companies” within
“Insurance and other payables” on the statement of statement of financial position.

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserves correspond to the provision representing future claim expenses and
related handling costs that are not specific to a claim. It represents all other expenses and costs that are related to
the adjudication of claims but cannot be assigned to a specific claim.

(i) Long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms

The Company writes long-term term assurance policies, where a single or regular premium is paid by the policyholder
in exchange for a fixed death benefit paid on death before the end of the term of the policy.

The Company also writes long term credit life policies, where a single or monthly premium is paid by the policyholder
in exchange for a death benefit, linked to a specified loan or morgage, paid on death before the end of the term of
the policy.

Premiums are recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before
deduction of commission. Claims are recorded as an expense when they are incurred.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the premiums are
recognised. The liability is based on assumptions such as mortality and investment performance. A conservative
approach is used to determine the assumptions so as to ensure adequate margin in the results.

Where insurance contracts have a single premium or a limited number of premium payments due over a significantly
shorter period than the period during which benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums payable over the
valuation premiums is deferred and recognised as income in line with the decrease of unexpired insurance risk of
the contracts in force or, for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected
to be paid. The liabilities are recalculated at each end of the reporting period using the assumptions established at
inception of the contracts.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Insurance contracts (continued)

332 Recognition and measurement (continued)
(iif) Long-term unit linked insurance contracts

The Company writes long term unit-linked term assurance and whole of life policies, where regular policyholder
premiums are invested into funds selected by the policyholder, in return for a death, maturity or surrender benefit
payable to the policyholder.

The benefits payable to the polieyholder may be a fixed sum assured, or an amount based on the value of the
policyholder’s unit fund, depending on the product type chosen by them. Liabilities are set equal to the policyholders’
account value in addition to liabilities caleulated against the insurance risk embedded in the products and recorded
as “Payables to policyholders” of unit linked products™ in the statement of financial position. These account values
are affecred by factors including but not limited to: payment of policy premiums, changes in the unit prices, policy
administration fees, mortality charges, surrender charges and any withdrawals.

The liability for these contracts includes any amounts necessary to compensate the Company for services to be
petformed over future periods. This is the case for contracts where the policy administration charges are higher in
the initial years than in subsequent years. The mortality charges deducted in each period from the contract holders
are considered adequate to cover the expected total death benefit claims in excess of the contract account balances
in each period; no additional liability is therefore established for these claims.

A unit-linked insurance contract is an insurance contract with an embedded detvative linking payments on the
contract 1o units of investments, This embedded derivative meets the definition of an insurance contract and is not
therefore accounted for separately from the host insurance contract. The liability for such contracts is adjusted for
all changes in the fair value of the undeclying assets.

(a) Deferred policy acguisition costs (DAC)

Commissions and other acquisiion costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset (DAC). All other costs are recognised as expenses, when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life of the contract.

(b} Liability adequacy test

At the end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows,
claims handling, administration expenses and other associated expenses, as well as investment income from the assets
backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the statement of income by establishing
a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests (“the unexpired risk provisions™).

(¢} Reinsoirance contractr beld

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses on one
or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts are
classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as
financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer
{inwards reinsurance) are included with insurince contracts. The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets.
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33 Insurance contracts (continued)

3.3.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)
{c) Reinsnrance contracts beid (continmed)

These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent
on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable
from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis. If there is objective evidence that
the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income statement. The Company gathers the objective evidence
that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process adopted for insurance receivables. The impairment loss
is calculated following the same method used for these financial assets.

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for life insurance and general insurance
contracts where applicable. Premium and claims on assumed reinsurance contracts are recognised as revenue or
expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account
the product classification of the reinsured business.

Reinsurance assets also include third party recoveries that are outstanding but not yet confirmed by the respective
insurance companies against the claims that were already paid by the Company. Once the third party recoveries are
confirmed, they are reclassified to “Due from insurance companies” within “Insurance and other receivables™ on
the statement of financial position,

{d) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) property acquired in setding a claim (for
example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(for example, subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for claims,
and salvage property is recognised in other assets when the Liability is settled. The allowance is the amount that can
reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the asset.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the insutance lability for
claims and are recognised in other assets when the liability is settled, The allowance is the assessment of the amount
that can be recovered from the action against the liable third party.

(&) Prowision for defanit claiss and refunds

The Company recorded the provision for default claims and refunds relating to credit life insurance policies within
Insurance contract liabilities. This provision is for the additional benefits covered in the specific credit life policies
towards skip and disappearance of the customers.
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34 Revenue recognition
(@) Interest incomie

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (or stage 3), for which interest income is calculated by applying the cffective
interest rate to their amortised cost (Le. net of the expected credit loss provision} and are recognised within
‘interest income' in the statement of income.

{B)  Dividend incosire

Dividend income from investments is recognised in the statement of ineome when the Company’s right to receive
dividend has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

(¢} Refursrance comemetcsion earmed

Commissions earned are recognised fully at the tme the related insurance contracts are writter,
3.5  Foreign currencies

3,51 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the funectional currency”). The Company’s financial
statements are presented in Arab Emirates Dirham (" AED"), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
CUITEnCY.

3.5.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates,
are generally recognised in the statement of income. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of income, within *Administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, transladon differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain ot loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as at fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income,

3.6 Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Company is organised into two business segments based on their products and
services and has two business segments as follows:

{a) The general insurance segment comprises of property, fire, marine, motor, medical, general accident and
miscellaneous risks.

{b) The life assurance segment offers short term and long teem life insurance, Revenue from this segment is
detived primarily from insurance premium, fees and commission income, investment income and fair value
gains and losses on investments,
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Segment reporting (continued)

No operating segments have been apgregated to form the above reportable operating segments. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from profit or
loss in the financial statements. Mo inter-segment transactions oceurred during the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2021. If any transaction were to occur, transfer prices between operating segments would be set on an arm's
length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operatng decision maker.

The two operating segments i.¢ General Insurance and Life Insurance segments, oraganised under two Presidents
who report into the Chief Executive Officer. The Board and its various committes have oversight on the overall
operations of the company.

37 Property and equipment

Property and equipment comprises of frechold land, furniture and fixture, office equipment, motor vehicles,
computer equipment and capital work in progress.

Property and equipment is carried at historical cost, less accuomulated depreciation any recognised impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items, These assets
are classified to the appropriate categories of property and equipment when completed and ready for their
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other propetty and equipment, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for 25 a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Capital work in progress is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost includes the cost of
construction and other related expenditure which are capitalised as and when activities that are necessary to get
the assets ready for use are in progress. Net realisable value represents the estimated recoverable value based on
expected future usape. Management reviews the carrying values of the capital work in progress on an annual basis.

Capital work in propgress are considered to be completed when all related activities, for the entire assets have been
completed. Upon completion, those are transferred to property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asser) is included in the statement
of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for
separately is capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other
subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of
property and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the statement of income as the expense is incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets, other than capital work in progress, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on 2 prospective
basis.
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37 Property and equipment (continued)

The useful life considered in caleulation of depreciation for all the assets is as follows:
Office Equipment & Computer Equipment - 5 years

Motor Vehicles - 4 years
#  Furniture and Fixtures - 12 years

38 Intangible assets

Intangible assets including software and license fee for access 1o know how.

(a) Software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

Thete is 2n ability to use or sell the software product,

It can be demonstrated how the software product will penerate probable future economic benefits;
Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

* The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

a 8 8 & @

Directly attributable costs that are capiralised as part of the software product include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of directly attributable overheads.

‘The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives considered in
the calculation of amortisation is 5 years,

(b} License know how

Licenses know how is shown at historical cost. It has a definite useful life and is carried at cost less aceurnulated
amortisation and impairment. Amortisation is caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost license
over their estimated useful lives ie 5 years.

39 Leases

The Company leases office premises. Rental contract of the leases range from 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions, The lease agreement
does not impose any covenants, but leased assets cannot be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability within “Insurance and other payables™
at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to statement of income over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over shorter of the asset’s useful life or the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

* variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

* amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and

®  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.
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39 Leases (contnued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liahility. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
detetmined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtiin an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar
terms and conditions,

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

*  the amount of the initial measurement of lease lability,

®  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
® any initial direct costs; and

* restoration costs.

Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.

Extension and termination options

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise 1 termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or
not terminated).

For buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant.,

* if there are signi t penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to
extend {or not terminate);

* if any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically
reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate); and

*  otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects
this assessment and that is within the control of the lessee.

Termination option is included in the property lease of the Company. This option held is exercisable by the
Company and the lessor,

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
statement of income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option,

3.0 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.
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3.11  Financial instraments
fa) Invesimnents and otber finandal areets

(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and
8  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entify’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gaing and losses will either be recorded in statement of
income or statement of other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the dme of inital
recognition to sccount for the equity investment at fair value throogh other comprehensive income. The
Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Recognition and derecognition

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the “trade date”, ie. the date thar the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally esmablished by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.
Financial assets with embedded derivadves are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:

% Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and intetest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in ‘Net investment income/ (loss)’ together with foreign
exchange pains and losses. Impairment losses are included within Net investment income/(loss)’ in the
statement of income,

% FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVIPL, A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in the income statement
and is presented net within Net investment income’ in the period in which it arises.

% FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCL, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss, When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in ‘Net investment income”. Interest income from these financial
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in ‘MNet investment income’,
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311  Financial instruments (continued)

(iif) Measurement (continued)

Eauity i

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the Company’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVTOCL The
Company's poliey is to designate equity investments at FVTOCI when those investments are held for purposes
other than to generate investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised
in OCT and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends, when representing
a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as “Net investment income / (loss)”
when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

The unit-linked assets include investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products, financial assets
from reinsurer towards policyholders of unit linked products contracts and cash held on behalf of policyholders.
Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products and financial assets from reinsurer towards
polieyholders of unit linked products contracts are acerued to the account of the contract holder at the fair value
of the net gains adsing from the underlying linked assets. All these contracts are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and were designated in this category upon initial recognition. Cash held on behalf of policyholders
are designated as amortised cost investment designated in this category upon initial recognition.

The Company assesses the collectability of its financial assets based on its credit policy and default events. Refer
to (b} below for impairment of insurance and other receivables.

(bl Inseerance and other receivaliles

Insurance and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any. A provision for doubtful debts of receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation and default or delinguency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is tecognised in the statement of income. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for that receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited in
the statement of income.

foi  Frwamcial Sabilitier
The Company recognises a financial liability when it first becomes a party to the contractual rights and
obligations in the contract.

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is not at
FVTPL) transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial liability, Financial liabilitics are
measured at amortised cost, unless the Company opted to measure a liability at FVTPL.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial linbilities incladed in insurance and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently at amortised cost. The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment
amount. If the due date of the liability is less than one year, discounting is omitted.
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311  Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and
expense will not be offset in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or
interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

(d) Cash and carh equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible inte known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value less overdrafts with banks. Bank overdrafts are shown within liabilities in the statement of
financial position.

(e) Bank deposits with banks with original maturities of more than three months

Deposits held with banks with original maturities of more than three months are initially measured at fair value
and subsequendy measured at amortised cost.

3.12  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGLT)
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated furure cash flows are discounted to their present value using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.

These ealenlations are corroborated by valuarion multiples or other available fair value indicators. Impairment
Iosses are recognised in the statement of income.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in
the statement of income,
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3.13  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for furure operating losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligaton, Where 4 provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.14 Employees’ end of service benefits

st ey et i ;

The Company provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees in accordance with the UAE Labor
Law.

The enttlement to these benefits is based upon the employees' salary and the length of service, subject to the
completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of

employment.
Defined bt sl G UAR sadtocal sitiol

The Company is a member of the pension scheme operated by the Federal Pension General and Social Security
Authority. Contributions for eligible UAE Natonal employees are made and charged to the statement of income,
in accordance with the provisions of Federal Law No. 7 of 1999 relating to pension and Social Security Law. The
employees and the Government eontribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculation salary™ respectively, to
the scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the retirement pension and social security
scheme is to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of income.

An accrual has been made for the past contributions relating to the services rendered by the eligible UAE National
employees up to 31 December 2022. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

3.15 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statemnents. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial
statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
316  Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

{a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) Has significant influence aver the Company; or
(iif) 1s a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company ate members of the same Company (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(if) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a Company of which the other entity is a member).

(iii} Both entities are joint ventutes of the same third party.

{iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity,

{v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity
related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Company;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

{vii}A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entry).

317  Administration expenses

Diirect expenses of general insuranee business are charged to respective departmental revenue accounts and is charged
to statement of income,

3.18 Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered 1o be relevant. Actal results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pedod, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both carrent and future perods. The sensitivities for life insurance
contracts are disclosed in note 14.7 and for general insurance contracts ate disclosed in note 26.4.

Significant areas where management has used estimates, assumptions or exercised judgements are as follows:
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4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
4.1 The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date. The liability
for outstanding claims includes the cost of claims reported but yet to be paid, claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR™),
and the estimated expenses to be incurred in settling claims.

The process of establishing liahility estimates is subject to considerable variability as it requires the use of informed esimates
and judgments, These estimates and judgments are based on numerous factors, and may be revised as additional experience
becomes available or as regulations change. The liability for outstanding claims is estimated using the input of assessment
for individual cases n:p-nm:d to the Company as well as assessments performed by external loss adjustors where deemed
necessary, Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. The Company takes all reasonable
steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding the risk of major storm, tempest and Hood scenarios that exist
in the UAE to estimate its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely
that the final cutcome will prove to be different from the original liability established.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncermainty than the estimation of the cost of serling
claims, where more information about the claim event is available. Classes of business which have a longer reporting tail
and where the IBNR proportion of the totl reserve is therefore high will typically display greater variations between initial
estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty in estimating these liabilities. For the short-tailed
classes, claims are typically reported soon after the claim event, and tend to display less varation. In calculating the required
levels of provisions, the Company’s intemal and external independent actuary use a varety of estimation techniques,
generally hased upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the development pattem of the current
claims will be consistent with past experience.

In arriving at booked claims provisions, management also make allowance for changes or uncertainges which may create
distortions in the underlying statistics or which might canse the cost of unsettled claims to increase or reduce when
compared with the cost of previously settled claims including

changes in patterns of claim incidence, reporting, processing, finalisation and payment;

changes in the legal environment,

the impact of infladon (both economic/wage and superimposed);

changes in the mix of business;

the impact of large losses;

the effects of inflation;

movements in industry benchmarks;

medical and technological developments;

changes in policyholder behaviour,

The methods used to analyse past claim expetience and to project futute claim expedence are largely determined by the
available data and the nature of the portfolio. The projections given by the different methodologies assist in setting the
mange of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the charactedstics
of the business class and the extent of the development of each accident year.

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being measured on a case by case basis
or projected separately in order to allow for the possible distortive effect of the development and incidence of these large
claims.

Ouestanding claims and claims incurred but not reported are caleulated pross of reinsurance. A separate estimate is made
of the amounts recoverable from reinsurers and third parties under reinsurance contracts based on the gross provisions.
Future cash flows are not discounted for time value of money.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
4.2 Mathematical reserves

Liabilities pertaining to the long-term insurance contracts are determined based on standard actuarial principles. The liability
is determined based on the actuarial present value of future cashflows. These cashflows are based on factors, including but
not limited to; claims, expected future monrtality and the structure of the product. Additional liabilities are determined for
supplementary benefits attached to the base policy.

The Company bases the moreality and morbidity estimates on standard tables that best reflect historical experience, adjusted
where appropriate to reflect the Company’s own experence. A67 — 70 Ultimate Mortality Table of Assured Lives and a
discount rate of 3% are used for the purpose of discounting the Liabilities (31 December 2021: 1%).

4.3 Impairment of freehold land

At each reporting date or whenever a change in circumstances occurs, both internal and external sources of information
are considered 1o assess whether there is an indication that freehold Iand is impaired. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated using fair value less costs of disposal and/or value in use ealeulations as
appropriate, If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment charge is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment charges are recognised in the statement of income.

4.4 Impairment of insurance receivables

The Company reviews its insurance receivables to assess impairment on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of income, the Company makes judgements as to whether there is
any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash Bows from receivables. A
provision for doubtful debts of insurance receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Compmywm
not be able to collect all amounts due aocondmg to their orginal terms, (Refer to note 3.11(h)) Receivables arising from
reinsutance contracts are also reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review of receivables.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. Investment securities and unit linked assets

Investment securities compnises the fui]nwiﬂg:

Asar 31 Asar 31

December December

2022 2021

AED000 AED000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (6.1) 76,752 47,871

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (6.2) 27 17

76,779 47,888

Unit linked assets (6.3) 349,613 368,887
6.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 Asat 31

December December

2022 2021

AED000 AED000

Quoted equity securities in UAE. 61,953 19,668

Quorted equity securities outside U.A.E. 464 570

Quated bonds in UAE, 11,971 16,450

Investment in funds outside U.AE. - 7364

Unquoted equity securities outside UAE, az7 426

Unquoted equity securities in UAE. 2,037 3,393

Fair value at the end of the year 76,752 47 871

Investments classified at fair value through profit or loss are designared in this category upon initial recognitior.

The bonds carry interests ar the rates of 2.09% two 5.87% (31 December 2021: 209% to 5.87%) per annum. The
bonds are redeemable at par from 2023 to 2026 (31 December 2021; 2022 to 2026) based on their maturity dates.
Thete are no significant concentrations of credit tisk to a single counter party for debt instruments and the carrying
amount reflected above represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such assets.

6.2 Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

As ar 31 Asar3l

December December

2022 2021

AED000 AED'000

Quoted equity securtes in UAE. 27 17
27 17

Investments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income are designated in this category upon initial
recognition,

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not dispose any equity investments held at fair value
through other comprehensive income (31 December 2021: AED 7,092 thousand) in line with the Company's
investment strategy. The Company realised loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 is AED 11,208 thousand
which was transferred to accumulated losses,
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6, Investment securities and unit linked assets (continued)
6.3  Unit linked assets
Asat As at
31 December 3 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED"00
Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products carried
at FVTPL 215,180 231,059
Financial assets due from reinsurer towards policyholders of unit-linked
products carried at FVTPL 122,490 124,474
Cash held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products carried at
amortised cost ; 11,943 13,354
349,613 368,887

6.4 Investment Concentration

The CBUAE has set a maximum limit for aggregate exposure in various categories of investments. As at 31 December
2022, the Company was in compliance with this requirement. As at 31 December 2021, the Company had invesunents
more than the limits set in some categories, parricularly equity instruments within and outside the UAE, and deposits
and other debt instruments.

6.5 Movement in the financial investments

FVTFL FVTOCI Total

AED(000 AED000 AED 000

At 1 Janoary 2021 106,384 6,887 113,271
Purchases B.490 - B,490
Transfers 7,364 - 7,364
Disposals (69,294) (7,092) (76,386)
Maturities {7,025) - (7,025}
Movement in accrued interest 13 - 13
Changes in fair value (978) (18) (996)
Realised gain 2917 240 3,157
As at 31 December 2021 4787 17 47,888
Purchases 67,165 - 67,165
Disposals (36,168) - (36,168)
Changes in fair value (5,289) 10 (5,279
Realised gain 3,173 - 3,173

As at 31 December 2022 76,752 27 76,779

a3



Union Insurance Company P.J.5.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

i Statutory deposit

The statutory deposit of AED 10 million (31 December 2021: AED 10 million) is required to be placed by insurance
companies operating in the UAE, with the designated national banks. This deposit has been pledged to the bank as
security against a guarantee issued by the bank in favour of the CBUAE for the same amount.

Stamtory deposits, which depend on the nature of insurance activities, cannot be withdrawn except with the pror
approval of the CBUAE in accordance with Article 42 of Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended and bear interest
rate of 1.5% per annum (31 December 2021: 0.6% and 0.68% per annum).

B.  Cash and bank balances

8.1 Cash and cash equivalent

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AED000 AED'000

Cash in hand 50 50
Bank balances:

Current accounts with banks 30,789 91,831

Bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less 174,828 -

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows 205,667 1,881

InUAE 203,593 91,302

Outside UAE 2,074 579

205,667 91,881

Bank deposits with orginal maturities of three months or less as at 31 December 2022 carried interest rate ranging
between 4.05% to 5% per annum (2021: 0.42%)
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8. Cash and bank balances (continued)

8.2 Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months

As at Asar

31 December 31 December

202z 2021

AED000 AEDT00

Deposits with original maturities greater than three months 68,888 205,965
In UA.E. 45,210 172,760
Outside U.AE. 23,678 33,205
68,888 205,965

Bank deposits carried interest rates mnging from 1.5% to 8% per annum (31 December 2021: 0.15% to 8.5% per annum).

Bank deposits of AED 45 million (31 December 2021: AED 46.4 million) have been pledged as security against the credit
facility which is to manage the liquidity position.

The Company has obtained overdraft facilities from commercial banks in the UAE amounting to AED 25 million (31
December 2021: AED 28 million) which carry interest rate of 1% per annum abowve the highest interest rate payable on

fixed deposits under lien for the overdraft facility; or as varied by notice in writing received from the bank from tme to
time, Unused credit facilities amounted to AED 25 million (31 December 2021: AED 28 million).

9. Share capital

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED'000
Issued and fully paid 330,939,180 shares of AED 1 each
(31 December 2021: 330,939,180 share of AED 1 each) 330,939 330,939

10. Reserves
MNature and purpose of reserves

10.1  Statotory reserve

In accordance with the UAE Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Article of Association, the Company has
tesolved not to increase the statutory reserve above an amount equal to 50% of its paid up share capital. The Company
transfers 10% of the profits for each year to the statutory reserve. The Company transferred AED 1,833 thousand during
the year ended (31 December 2021: AED 1,322 thousand). The reserve is not available for distribution except in the
circumstances stipulated by the law.

10.2  Special reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors may transfer 10% of annual net profits,
if any, to a spedal reserve undl an Ordinary General Meeting upon a proposal suspends it. The special reserve can be
atilised for the purposes determined by the Ordinary General Meeting upon recommendations of the Board of Directors.
The Company transferred AED 1,833 thousand during the year ended (31 December 2021: AED 1,322 thousand).

10.3  Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial assets designated as fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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10. Reserves (continued)

10.4  Reinsurance reserve

In accordance with Article 34 of the Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No. (23) of 2019, the Company
has mansferred AED 2,521 thousand from “Accumulated losses’ to the Reinsurance reserve” being 0.5% of the total
insurance premium ceded to reinsurers durng the year ended 31 December 2022 (year ended 31 December 2021: AED
2,619 thousand). The Company shall accumulate such provision period on period and shall not dispose of the reserve
without the written approval of the assistant governor of the banking and insurance supervision department within the
CBUAE.

11 Related party balances and transactions

The Company, in the normal course of business, collects premiums, settles claims and enters into transactions with other
business enterprises that fall within the definition of a related party as defined by Intemational Accounting Standard 24.
Related parties include the Company’s major Shareholders, Directors and businesses controlled by them and their families
over which they exercise sipnificant management influence as well as key management personnel. The Company's
management believes that the terms of such transactions are not sipnificanty different from those that could have been
obmuined from third parties.

At the end of the reporting year, amounts due from/ (to) related parties which are included in the respective account
balances are detailed below:

As at Asar
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED'000
Balances with entities related to Board members
Gross outstanding claims (included in claims reported unsettled) 468 44
Fized depozits 45,256 3
Bank account 3,537 2
Balances with former major shareholder
Premium receivables (Note 16) 26,603 26,508
Allowance for doubtful receivables Note 16) {26,360) (26,3100
Met premium receivables 243 198
Investment properties reclassified to “Advance paid for purchaze of
teal estate properties” 72,270 72,270
Reversal of net fair value gains recorded in prior years (35,770) (35,770)
Advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 16)* 36,500 36,500
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate propertes (Note
16) (36,500) (36,500)

The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. No guarantees have been given to the
related parties.

* The amount under the advance paid for real estate properties (AED 36.5 million) was represented as Investment
Properties with a carrying value in the books of AED 72.3 million in the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, The said asset represents purchased assets from related parties during the years 2013 and 2014. The
purchased assets comprise a 60 residential-unit in a single building and a plot of land of 150,000 square feet with integrated
infrastructure, For one of the assets, the agreement was entered in 2013 to purchase 150,000 square feet of the land, which
was reduced to 56,800 square feet and later amended to 78,900 square feet based on the instruction received from the
former Chairman who was also the representative of the related party.
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11. Related party balances and transactions (continued)
Balances with former major shareholder {continued)

The counterparties (related parties) to the above mansactions never fulfilled their obligations to the Company (the Buyer),
and 4s a result the Company did not obtain the title deeds nor obtain possession of the said assets. This has resulted in the
incorrect recogrition of fair value gains of AED 35.8 million on investment properties in respect of which the Company
never obtained possession or legal title, and the misappropristion of advances amounting to AED 36.5 million paid to a
related party towards the acquisition of the investment properties. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company
decided to book a full provision (AED 72.3 million) against the said assets and proceed with legal action against all involved
parties, to recover the Company’s rights, in accordance with the resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30
Septemnber 2021.

During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
AED000 AED000
Transactions with entities related to Board members
Premiums written 1,21 1,299
Claims paid (2,445) (897
FD interest income from Bank of Umm Al-Qaiwan 439 -
Bank charges 108 -
Rental paid 504 525
Compensation of key management personne!
Short-term benefits 4,440 4,388
Long-term benefits 200 200
Board of Directors” fees 1,655 1,600
12, Contingent liabilities
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2022 2021
AED00 AED000
Letters of puarantee® 13,186 15,790

*Includes AED 10 million (31 December 2021: AED 10 million) issued in favor of the CBUAE (Note 7).

The Company, in common with the majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business, Based
on independent legal advice, the Company considers that the outcome of the outstanding court cases will not have a
matertal impact on the Company’s financial statements.

13. Payables to policyholders of unit linked producis

The Company issues unit linked policies which have both insurance risk and investment components. The investment
portion is invested on behalf of the policyholders as disclosed in note 6.3 of these financial statements.
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13. Payables to policyholders of unit linked products (continued)

Mupergenr during the year:

Asat 1 January

Purchase

Sales

Other charges

Change in fair value of the unit linked products

14. Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets

Gross insurance contract liabilities
Claims reported unsettled

Claims incurred but not reported
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve
Unexpired risk reserve

Third party recoveries

Mathematical reserve

Unearned premiums

Provision for default claims and refund
Gross insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contract assets
Claims reported unsettled

Claims incurred but not reported
Unexpired risk reserve

Third party recoveries
Mathematical reserve

Unearned premiums

Total reinsurance contract assets

Net

Claims reported unsettled

Claims incurred but not reported
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve
Unexpired risk reserve

Third party recoveres

Mathematical reserve

Unearned premiums

Provision for default claims and refunds
Net insurance contract liabilities

Asat 3l Asar 3]
December December
2022 2021
AED000 AEDY00
Jo8,887 286,798
101,398 108,368
(52,201) (58,521)
(769) (2,436)
(67,702) 34,678
349,613 368,887
As at Asat

31 December 3 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED000
509,981 579,170
107,174 100,358
5,433 6,974
37,492 8.048
4,238 3,544
01,323 139,040
238,401 253,786
14,329 14,329
1,008,371 1,105,249
(439,097) (506,533)
(76,159) (65,379
{31,031) 2672
(8,480) (8,163)
(65,858) (119,373
(133,151) (134,738)
(753,776) (831,514)
70,884 72,637
31,015 34,979
5,433 6,974
6,461 10,720
(4,242) (4,619)
25,465 19,667
105,250 119,048
14,329 14,329
254,595 273,735
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14.  Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

The gross and net insurance contract liabilities of AED 989,804 thousand and AED 244,508 thousand respectively as
at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: AED 1,087,376 thousand and AED 264,025 thousand respectively) were
certified by the Company’s external appointed actuary, The difference in actuarial certification and the above amounts
is on account of provision for default claims and refunds, third party recoveries against outstanding claims and paid
claims. The changes in the methodologies and assumptions are detailed in note 26.4 of the financial statements.
Actuarial estimation of the insurance liabilines has been performed by an independent actuary in accordance with the
requirement of new financial regulations issued under Federal Law No.6 of 2007 as amended, as amended, pertaining
to the insurance companies and agents. Estimates are made for the expected ultimate cost of claims incutred but not
vet reported at the reporting date (IBNR) using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based on
empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

16. Insurance and other receivables

Due from policyholdets and brokets

Due from insurance companies

Due from reinsurance companies

Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers,
insurance and teinsurance companies)

Due from related parties (Note 11)

Provision for doubtful debts — (Due from related parties) (Note 16.1)

Other receivables
Provision for doubtful debts (Mote 16.1)

Advance paid for purchase of real estate propeities (Note 11)
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate properties
(MNote 11)*

Deferred acquisition cost (Note 16.2)
Prepaid expenses

Inside UAE
Due from policyholders and brokers

Due from insurance companies

Due from reinsurance companies

Provision for doubeful debts (due from policyholders, brokers,
insurance and reinsurance companies)

Due from related partes (MNote 11)

Provision for doubtful debts — (Due from related pardes) (Note 11)

Other receivables

Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 16.1)

Advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 11)#
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate properties
MNote 11)*

Deferred acquisition cost (Note 16.2)

Prepaid expenses

As at As ar
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AEDD0 AEDO0
255,631 280,295
31,446 22.595
20,965 23,422
(37,409) (34,499)
26,603 26,508
{26,360) (26,3100
270,876 202011
40,687 38,946
{271) (2713
40,416 38675
36,500 36,500
(36,500) (36,500)
20,871 19,061
6,444 6,455
338,607 356,202
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED"000 AED000
190,958 224,634
31,446 22.595
3,949 2,802
(24,570) (22,578)
26,603 26,508
(26,360) (26,310)
202,026 227.651
40,687 38,946
(271) (271)
36,500 36,500
(36,500) (36,500)
20,871 19,061
6,944 6,455
269,757 201,842
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the vear ended 31 December 2022

16. Insurance and other receivables (continued)

As at As ar
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED'000 AED000
Outside UAE

Due from policyholders and brokers 64,673 55,661
Due from reinsurance companies 17,016 20,620

Provision for doubtful debits (due from policyholders, brokers,
insurance and reinsurance comparnies) (12,839 (11,921}
68,850 64,360

* The amount under the advance paid for real estate properties (AED 36.5 million) was represented as Investment
Properties with a carrying value in the books of AED 72,3 million in the audited financials for the year ended 31
December 2020, The said asset represent a purchased assets from related parties during the years 2013 and 2014, The
purchased assets comprise a 60 residential-unit in a single building and a plot of land of 150,000 square feer with
integrated infrastructure. For one of the assets; the agreement was entered in 2013 to purchase 150,000 square feet of
the land, which was reduced to 56,800 square feet and later amended to 78,900 square feet based on the instruction
trom the former Chairman who was also the representative of the related party. The counterparties (related parties) to
the above transactions never fulfilled their nb]igutiuns to the Company (the Buyer), and as a result the Cnmpmy did
not obtain the title deeds nor obtain possession of the said asset. This has resulted in the incorrect recognition of fair
value gains of AED 35.8 million on investment properties in respect of which the Company never obtained possession
or legal title, and the misapptopriation of advances amounting to AED 36.5 million paid to a related party towards the
acquisition of the investment properties. Accordingly, the Board of the 'Compan}r decided to book a full provision
{AED 723 million) against the said assets and proceed with legal action t all involved partles, to recover
Company's rights, in accordance with the resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30 September 2021.

16.1 Provision for doubtful debts

As at As at
3 3
December December
2022 2021
AED 000 AEDY00
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers,
insurance and reinsurance companies) 34,499 24,849
Provision for doubtful debts — (Due from telated patties) (Note 16.1) 26,310 26,173
Allowance for doubtful receivables Note 16.1) 271 -
Balance at the beginning of the year 61,080 51,022
Provision during the year 2,977 10,062
Write off during the year (17) (4
Balance at the end of the year 64,040 61,080
16.2  Deferred acquisition costs
As at Asat
3 31
December December
2022 2021
AED000 AED'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 19,061 20,5829
Commission paid during the year 84,516 89,204
Commission incurred during the year {82,706) (91,062)
Balance at the end of the year 20,871 19,061

1.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

16. Insurance and other receivables (continued)

Insurance receivables and due from reinsurance companies are summarised as follows.

As at 31 December 2022

Due from policvholders and brokers
Due from insurance companies
Due from reinsurance companies
Due from related parties (INote 11)
Toral

As at 31 December 2021

Due from policyholders and brokers
Due from insurance companies

Due from reinsurance companies
Due from related parties (Note 11)
Total

17. Intangible assets

Cost:

At 1 January 2021
Transfers from CWIP
At 31 December 2021
Additions

Transfers from CWIP
At 31 December 2022

; lated A —
At 1 January 2021

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2021

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

Neither pastdue  Pastduebut o 9U¢ o
or impaired not impaired i o
= impaired
AED'000 AED000  AED00D0 AED000
89,600 139,693 26,338 255,631
2,609 28,837 - 31,446
2,250 7,644 11,0711 20,965
15 228 26,360 26,603
94,474 176,402 63,769 334,645
Meither past due  Past due but ra :]Iul;
nor impaire:i not Imp:i.ired nnpmmd Tortal
AED00 AED'000 AEDO00  AED00
90,611 165,012 24672 280,295
1,382 21,213 - 22595
4308 9,287 9,827 23422
3 195 26,310 26,508
96,304 195,707 60,809 352,820
Licensed
know-how

fiee Software Total

AED000 AEDF000 AED000

19,108 16,959 36,067

: 4,199 4,199

19,108 21,158 40,266

- 86 86

- 971 971

19,108 22215 41,323

8,000 11,306 19,306

3,464 2922 6,386

11,464 14,228 25,692

3,822 3,086 6,908

15,286 17,314 32,600

7,644 6,930 14,574

3,822 4,901 8,723
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Motes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

17.  Intangible assets (continued)

The Company had paid non-refundable license fee in the year 2018 to utilise and access to know how of the customers
of a bank.

Intangible assets include internally generated software amounting to AED 11,143 thousand (31 December 2021 : AED
11,143 thousand) and accumulated amortisation of AED 10,170 thousand (31 December 2021: AED 8,500 thousand).
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no additions or deletions to the intemally generated
30

18, Insurance and other payables

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED™000 AED000
Trade payables 06,450 76,039
Due to insurance and reinsurance companies 102,701 121,457
Reinsurance premiom reserve held 27,344 28,906
196,495 226,402

Orther payables:
Unclaimed dividends 1,980 1,998
Accrued expenses and other payables 54,282 47,068
Lease liabilities (Note 22} 6,855 32
259,612 275,500

19. Administrative expenses
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021

AED'000 AED000

Staff costs (Note 19.1) 58,005 61,310
Deepreciation and amortzation 11,476 10,868
Legal & professional Fees 4,505 4,461
Maintenance charges 5,020 5,262
Telephone and communicatons 3,447 3,098
Governmental and regulatory fees 1,968 =
Rent on short term leases 1,918 2,002
Others 4,722 3883
91,061 90,884

19.1  Staff costs
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021

AED000 AED000

Salaries and allowances 47,331 47,825
Employees’ end of service benefits (Note 23) 2,885 3,081
Staff insurance 3,881 3,229
Other staff benefits 3,908 7.175
58,005 61,310
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Union Insurance Company P.].5.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

19, Administrative expenses (continued)

19.2  The commitment of short teom leases

The commitment for short term leases amounting to AED 1,353 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2022 (31

December 2021: AED 1,611 thousand).

19.3  Other operational expenses related to underwriting activities

Marketing expenses
Third party administration fees
Other expenses

20. MNet investment income/ (loss)

Interest income

Other investment income,/ (Joss):

Dividend income

Realised pains on sale of investments at FVTPL
Unrealised loss on investments at FVTPL
Investment management ¢Xpenses

Oithers

Other investment loss

INet investment income

For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
AED000 AED'000
21,075 26,924
17,292 1,392
8,457 9,186
2,113 904
48,937 38,406

For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
AED'000 AED'000
6,149 6,530
3,018 527
3,173 2,917
(5,289) (978)
(1,004) (3,394)
(53) (173)
(155) (1,101)
5,994 5,429

57



8¢

pardanoe wmpuazd asuemstd J0 (PUvSnom 6767 AV $1207 qUR23(Y [€) PUssno Z¢6'se (I sopnpur wmiuand senuen ssuwmsuy

£19'66C ELELIE 1LOW 0L5°89 Z09'SSE £08"8HT INUIAAT wniwsad SIUEINSUT 39N
porzsy)  (soszis) (L69'09) (61L'8P1) (L90°Z68) (98L€9¢)
LY TP £rLop YT €bL'oy - - s1apjoyianod
hnm _HBWH.E Hﬂ.ﬂbﬂﬂ.ﬂhﬂ u.u.w.._m nﬂ._uﬂ._._...m.n_._uﬁ
I#F'92 (515'¢%) 1#t'oz (s15'¢cg) : - (1 MON) 219833 [EanBWSLREW U 3Fuey’)
Z91'Z (L85T) i (cz9) ¥Z0'T (90D (p1 230py) summuaad pauresun ur a8uey)
(eeg'czs)  (opr'pog) (8¥L'6z1) (vzp'1e1) (160'P6E) (zzL'798) Papa2 sumpaid DUEINSURY
Papaa swnpuard J0UEmsSuray
LEP'TSL 8L8°6Z8 89L'¥01 68T°LIT 699°L¥0 685219
(82600  (ps'TOD) (8z6'L01) (r#s'1om) - - staploydonod dq paissaut sunoury
(61€"1€) LIL L (61€°18) LIL'LY & = (1 ;10K 2A19597 [EonEWRYIEW UT ey
(66£°8) g8E'sT (7] L6S {rze's) 88LFT (#1 210N swnnuaad pauresun vy ey
£80°006 LIE'898 060'FHe 915*0LT £66'959 108°L6S sumpuaid U sso15
swinard uanus §50I5)
00009V 000.a9V 000,V 000,03V 000.a9Y 000,V
1202 Tz0T 1202 TZ0T 1202 7202
[F1n], ary Tel2auary

anuasay wnpuasd souemsur 1aR] i

ZZ0Z I2quIada(] [€ pIpuUa Teadk a1 10,]
(panunuod) suawNe)s [EDUEUY ) 03 SAON]

'y ['d Avedwon) ssuensuy uorupny



Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

22.  Leases

1 Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

221  Right-of-use assets — office premises

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED000
Balance at the beginning of the year 637 3,599
Addition during the year 9,240 -
Deepreciation expense for the year (3,016) (2,962
Balance at the end of the year 6,861 637
222 Lease liablities
Movement of lease liabilities during the year was as follows:
As at Asar
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED'00) AED0D0
At 1 January 32 2,648
Additions during the year 9,240 .
Accrued interest 413 110
Payments during the year (2,830) (2,726)
At 31 December 6,855 32

The incremental borrowing rate used for calculation of lease liabilities is 6.7% for the year ended 31 December 2022

(31 December 2021: 6.7 %)

Current and non-curtent poertions of lease liabilities are as follows:

MNon-current portion
Current portion

As at Asat

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED'000 AED000
3,821 -

3,034 32

6,855 32
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2, Leases (continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of income

Depreciation charged to general and administration expenses
Interest expense on lease liabilities

23. Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year {19.1)
Payments during the year
Balance at the end of the year

24, Basic and diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year (in 000)
Number of outstanding shares
Basic carnings per share (in AED)

_For the year ended 31 December
2022 2021
AED00 AED"000
3,016 2962

413 110

As at Asar

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED000 AEDDOD
12,873 10,962

2,885 3,081

(1,334) (1,170)
14,424 12,873

2022 2021

18,328 13,219
330,939 330,939
0,055 0.040

No figures for diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company has not issued any mstruments which
would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised, as such diluted earnings per share is equivalent to

basic earnings per share,

25, Social contributions

The Company did not make any social contributions during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

26. Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility thar the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable. The Company writes general, medical and life insurance contracts. General insurance contracts of
the Company include Liahility, Property, Motor, Fire, Marine, Genetal accident and Engineering insurance
contracts. Medical insurance contracts include both individual and group medical insurance contraces. Life insurance

contracts include group, Individual Life and credit life insurance contracts.

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or
the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, seventy of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims, Therefore, the objective of the Company is 1o

ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities,




Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

26, Insurance risk (continued)
Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Board has established the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management framework. The Committee reports
regularly to the Board of Directors on its actvities related to Risk Management framework and further
developments. The primary purpose of Risk Management framework is 1o protect the shareholders from events
that deter the sustainable achievement of the set financial/performance objective.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set approptiate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in marker conditons and the Company's activities. The Risk
Management principles are embedded in Companys operational and financial processes and further
mitigation/ controls are implemented for effective Internal Risk Management framework in the functional processes.

The Company’s Audit and Risk Management Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company's Audit and Risk Management Commuttee is assisted
in its oversight role by Internal Audit and Risk functions.

The Company does not foresee any material impact to its business and operations due to possible climate change
effect in the near future. The Company will, however, be collating necessary data to monitor the possible effect on
a periodic basis going forward.

Two key elements of the Company's insurance risk management framewotk are its underwiiting strategy and
reinsurance strategy, as discussed below.

Underwriting strategy
The Company's underwriting strategy Is to build balanced portfolios based on a large number of similar risks. This
reduces the variability of the portfolio’s outcome,

The underwriting strategy is set out by the Company that establishes the classes of business to be written, the
territories in which business is to be written and the industry sectors in which the Company is prepared to
underwrite. This strategy is cascaded by the business units to individual underwriters through detailed underwriting
authorities that set out the limits that any one underwriter can write by line size, class of business, territory and
industry in erder to ensure appropriate risk selection within the portfolio.

Business selection is part of Company's underwriting procedures/ guidelines whereby premiums are charged based
on the assessment and type of the risks. Other factors such as risk inspections, mortality, persistency and current
market trends are also considered in the risk underwriting and premium calculation.

Reinsurance strategy

The Company’s reinsurance arrangements include proportional, non-proportional, excess of loss and catastrophe
coverage. The Company reinsures a portion of the insurance risks it underwrites in order to control its exposure to
losses and protect capital resources.

The Company has a Reinsurance department that is responsible to arrange reinsurance artangement as per the
annual business plans and also for setting the minimum-security criteria for acceptable reinsurance and monitoring
the purchase of reinsurance by the business units against those criteria. The department monitors developments
in the reinsurance programme and its ongoing adequacy. As a proactive measure and part of Risk Management
framework, the reinsurers securities rating is monitored for any downgrade from credit risk perspective. The
reinsurance regulations issued by the CBUAE are also incorporated in the Reinsurance strategy.

The Company enters into a combination of proportionate and non-proportionate reinsurance treaties to reduce the
net exposure to the Company. In addition, underwriters are allowed to buy facultative reinsurance in certain
specified circumstances.
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

26, Insurance dsk (Continued)
26.1  Frequency and severity of claims

The Company manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance artangements and proactive
claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in
terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria.

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, to re-price the risk, to impose deductbles and to reject
the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment
of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Company’s strategy limits the total exposure to
any one territory and the exposure to any one industry.

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance
arrangements is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set minimum limit of AED 1,000
thousand (31 December 2021: 1,000 thousand) in any one event. The Company has survey units dealing with the
mitigation of risks surrounding claims. This unit investigates and recommends ways to improve risk claims. The
risks are frequently reviewed individually and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts,
current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively manages and
pursues eatly settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

26.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As s
result, certain claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision includes incurred
but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is genetally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than
the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where information about the claim
event is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to
the claims. For some insurance contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display
greater variations berween initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater depree of difficulty of
estimating these liabilities. In estimating the lability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company
considers information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order
to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio. In
estimating the liability for claims incurred but not reported, the Company involves an independent external

appointed actuary.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims’ exposures, However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is
possible that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established. The amount of
insurance claims is in certain cases sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal precedent
on martters of contract and tort.

Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections given by the
various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most approptiate estimation
technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development

of each accident year.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation techniques
are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual clims experience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-
ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous years® experience,
adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market experience and historical claims inflation,
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26, Insurance risk {continued)
262  Sources of uncerntainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

The loss ratios for the curtent and prior year, before and after reinsurance are summarised below by type of risk:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Gross loss Gross loss Net loss
Type of risk ratio Net loss ratio ratio ratio
General insurance 53% B5% BT% 5304
Life insurance 44% 1954 116% 359%

Based on the simulations petformed, the impact on profit of a change of 1% in the loss ratio for both gross and net
of reinsurance recoveries would be as follows:

2022 2021
Gross Net Gross Met
AED'000 AED*000 AEDOD AED00D

Impact of an increase of 1% in loss ratio 8,299 3,174 7.524 2,967
Impact of a decrease of 1% in loss ratio (8,299) (3,174) {7,524 (2,997

26.3  Process used to determine the assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in
neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The sources of data used as inputs for the assumptions
ate internal, using detailed studies that are carried out quarterly. The assumptions are checked to ensure that they
are consistent with observable market practices or other published information.

The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim
and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due
regard to the claim circumstances, information available from loss adjusters and historical evidence of the size of
similar claims.

Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information arises.

The provisions are based on information currently available. However, the ultimate liabilities may vary as a result of
subsequent developments or if catastrophic events occur. The impact of many of the items affecting the ultimate
costs of the loss is difficult to estimate.

The provision estimation difficulties also differ by class of business due to differences in the underlying insurance
contract, claim complexity, the volume of claims and the individual severity of claims, determining the oceurrence

date of a claim, and reporting lags.

The method used by the Company for calculating the provision of IBNR takes into account histotical data, past
estimates and details of the reinsurance programme, to assess the expected size of reinsurance recoveries. The

methods more commonly
used are the chain-ladder (*CL"), mcp:cm& loss ratios (“ELR™) and the Bornhuetter-Ferpuson ("BF")methods.

Chain-ladder methods may be applied to premiums, paid claims or incurred claims (for example, paid claims plus
case estimates). The basic technique involves the analysis of historical claims development factors and the selection
of estimated development factors based on this historical pattern. The selected development factors are then applied
to cumulative claims data for each accident year that is not yet fully developed to produce an estimated ultimate
claims cost for each accident year.
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26, Insurance risk {continued)
26.3  Process used to determine the assumptions (continued)

Chain-ladder techniques are most appropriate for those accident years and classes of business that have reached a
relatively stable development pattern. Chain-ladder techniques are less suitable in cases in which the insurer does
not have a developed claims history for a particular class of business.

The Bornhuerter-Ferguson method uses a combination of a benchmark or market- based estimate and an estimate
based on claims experience. The former is based on a measure of exposure such & premiums; the latter is based on
the paid or incurred claims to date. The two estimates are combined using a formula that gives more weight to the
experience-based estimate as time passes. This technique has been used in situations in which developed claims
experience was not available for the projection (recent accident years or new classes of business).

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this has meant
that a weighted average of different techniques have been selected for individual accident years or groups of accident
years within the same class of business. The Company has an internal actuary and independent external actuaries
are also involved in the valuation of technical reserves of the Company and has used historical data for the past 9

years.
The assumptions used for the life insurance contracts disclosed in this note are as follows:

Mortality

An appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract. An investigation into
Company's experience over the most recent three years is performed, and statistical methods are used to adjust the
rates reflected in the table to a best estimate of mortality for that year. Where data is sufficient to be statistically
eredible, the statistics generated by the dara are used withour reference to an industry table. For contracts insuring
survivorship, an allowance is made for future mortality improvements based on trends identified in the data and in
the eontinuous mortality investigations performed by independent actuarial bodies.

Morbidity
The rate of recovery from disability is derved from industry experience studies, adjusted where appropriate for the
Company’s own experience.

An analysis of sensitivity around various scenarios provides an indication of the adequacy of the Company’s
estimation process. The Company believes that the liability for claims reported in the statement of financial position
is adequare.

However, it recognises that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables and assumptions which could
differ when claims are finally settled.
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26, Insurance risk (continued)
26,4  Changes in assumptions and sensitivity analysis
This table illustrates assumptions used for IBNR calculation

The loss odgin is the accident quarter in which the loss is reported.

Year 2022 2021

IBNR Assumption Weighting Loss | Loss Weighti Loss | Loss

Line of Business CL/ELR | BF | origins | Ratios | CL/ELR BF | ongins | Rados
Aviation 100% 50% 2 30% 50% 50% 2 3%

Engineering 50% 25% 2 75% 75% 25% 2 75%

Fire T5% 50% 2 60% S0%s S50% 2 60%

General Accident 50% 100% - 25% 0% 100% - 25%

Liahility 0% 25% 2 30% 75% 25% 2 30%

Marine Cargo T5% 100% - 100% 0% 100% - 100%
Marine Hull 0% 50%a 2 100% 50% 50% 2 115%
Group Life 50% 100%% - 50% 0% 100% - 50%

Credit Life 0% 25% 2 25% 50% 0% 2 30%

Medical Others 75% 0% 2 507 100% 0% 2 60%

Medical Pentacare 100% 0% 2 65% 100% 0% 2 65%

Medical Mextcare 100% 50% 2 68% 0% 0% z G8%

Medical NAS 50% 100% - 65% 0% 100% - 65%

Motor TPL 0% 0% = 45% 100% 0% 3 45%

Motor Comprehensive 100% 0% 3 60% 100% 0% 3 60%
Motor Comprehensive

Car 100% 0% 2 1% 100% 0% 2 1%

This table illustrates the assumptions used for mathematical reserve and non-unit reserve calculation

Term
Assumption | Individual Life Assurance Credit Life Unit-Linked
Mortality 140% RI rates 140% AMCOO0 | 125% AMCO0 100% BRI rates
Interest Rate 3% pa opa 3% pa 3% pa
Renewal
Expenses AED 35 AED 35 AED 45 AED 230
Inflation 5% pa 5% pa 5% pa 5% pa
Unit Fund
Growth - - - 3% pa

The following changes in IBNR assumptions have been made between the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022,

Adding one year of data

Changing the loss ratio

Changing the number of origins used for the ELR method
Changing the weights applied to each tail method
Changing the outlier percentage

Changing the development factor

a &5 8 & & @
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26, Insurance dsk (continued)

26.4

Changes in assumptions and sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table shows the impact of Changes in IBNR assumptions relating to major lines of business:

General

2022 Motor Medical Credir Life Fire Accident

AED000 AED'000 AED000 AED0O00 AED'000
IBNR at the beginning of
the year 17,298 7,123 1,789 2,596 2,522
Change in data (5,517) (354) 2,647 (1,459) (315)
Loss ratio - (2,047) (856) = b
Expected loss rado origins - - - - -
Method weights = 5 (33) g <
Large claims IBNR - - - 22 -
Selected development 395 2,319 121 B22 1,250
IBNR at the end of the year 12,176 7,041 3,668 1,986 3,457

General

2021 Motor Medical Credit Life Fire Accident

AEDD00 AED000 AED000 AEDYM AED000
IBNR at the beginning of
the year 26,937 9,635 1,719 3,336 1,623
Change in data (7,792) {4,451) (1,960) 529 2,105
Loss ratio (1,164) 656 2348 (1,269) (688)
Expected loss ratio origins 1,071 - - - -
Method weights 2,263 1,989 (53) - (246)
Selected development (4017 {706) (265) - (272)
IBNR at the end of the year 17,298 7,123 1,789 2,596 2,522

The following table shows sensitivity impact on general insurance contracts:
Overall sensitivity of net results
AED 000
Technical provisions category Pessimistic Best Optimistic
Estimate Estimate Estimate
IBNR and IBNER 52,306 31,016 27,425
ULAE 6,584 5,433 5,195
AURR 12,768 B,460 3,641
Subtotal 71,658 42,910 36,261
Other technical provisions 149,061 149,061 149,061
Grand total 220,719 191,971 185,322
. Pessimistic Best Optimistic
SoRaan Estimate Estimate Estimate
IBNR and IBNER increase NLE by 5% Best estimate NLR decrease NLR by 5%
ULAE increase NLR by 5% Best estimate NLR decrease NLR by 5%
AURR increase NLR by 5% Best estimate NLR decrease NLR by 5%
increase AER by 2% Best estimate AER decrease AER by 2%
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27, Capital risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

. to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by U.AE. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 (as
amended), on Establishment of Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the UA.E.

("CBUAE") and Organization of its Operations.

. to safeguard the Company’s ability ro continue a5 a poing concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders: and

. to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the
level of risk.

In U.AE.,, Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.ALE, (“CBUAE") specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by the Company in addition to its insurance labilides. The
minimum required capital (presented in the table below) must be maintained at all times throughout the year.

The table below summarises the minimum required capital of the Company and the total capital held.

As at

31 Decembes

2022

AED000

(Unaundited)

Minimum Capital Requirerent (MCR) 100,000

Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 142,766

Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 90,252

Own Funds:

Basic own funds 162,889
Ancillary own funds

MCR Solvency Margin-Surplus/ (Deficit) 62,889

SCR Salvency Margin-Surplus/(Deficit) 20,123

MGF Solvency Margin-Surplus/ (Deficit) 72,637

Asat

31 December
2021
AED'000

(Unaudited)

100,000
138,697
90,379

136,399
36,399

(2,298)
46,020

The Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the UAE. ("CBUAE") has issued resolution No. 42
for 2009 setting the minimum subscrbed or paid-up capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance
firms and AED 250 million for reinsurance firms. The resolution also stipulates that ar least 75 percent of the
capital of the insurance companies established in the UAE should be owned by UAE or GCC national
individuals or corporate bodies. The Company is in compliance with the minimum capital requirements.

Further, as per Article (8) of section (2) of financial regulations issued for insurance companies in UA.E., the

Company shall at all times comply with the requirements of solvency margin.
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28 Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would ke those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are deseribed as follows:

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either divectly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (Le., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less
than active; or other valuation techniques in which all sipnificant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments,

Valuation techniques include net present walue and discounted cash flow models, comparison with similar
instruments for which market observable prices exist. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include
risk-free and benchmark interest rates, eredit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and
equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would
be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants

at the measurement date.
28.1 Fair value of financial instruments carrded at amortized cost

Management considers that the carrving amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at
amortsed cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values,

28.2  Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

The fair values of finandial and non-financial assets and financial liabilities are determined using similar valuation
techniques and assumptions as used in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,
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28. Fair value measurements (continued)
283  Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets measured at FVTOCI and FVTPL.,

FVTPL FVTOCI Total

AED"000 AED'000 AED000

At 1 January 2021 7,396 300 7,696
Disposals (754) - (754)
Provision for doubtful debts - (300 (300)
Changes in fair valoe (2,823) - (2,823)
As ar 31 December 2021 3,819 - 3,819
Disposals (1,243) : (1,243)
Changes in fair value (212) - (212)
As at 31 December 2022 2,364 - 2,364

There were no transfers between the levels during the year.
29. Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through irs financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance
assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its investment proceeds
are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of
this financial dsk are credir rsk, liquidity risk, market risk {which includes: foreign currency risk, equity and debr
price risk and interest rate risk) and operational risk.

29.1  Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

insurance receivables;

other receivables;

investment securities - debi;

bank depaosits with original maturities of more than three months;
statutory deposit; and

cash and cash equivalents

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from defanlts. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of is counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by
Management annually.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, dischagge the Company’s liability as primary
insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to the
policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial
strength prior to finalisation of any contract,
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)
29.1  Credit risk {continued)

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts
regular business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the right
of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management information reported
to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs.
Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholders are collected within the ongoing monitoring of
the controls. Where there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of
policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Company.

Insurance receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and peographical
arcas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.

The Company has no significant concentration of credit sk, with exposure spread over a larpe number of
counterparties and customers, The Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are
related entities, The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-

ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk.

292  Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the matutity profiles
of financial assets and liabilites.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s insurance and financial instruments. The
contractual maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at
the reporting date to the contracrual maturity date. The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure
adequate liquidity is maintained. The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting
date based on contractual repayment arrangements was as follows:
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29, Financial Risk Management (continued)

29.2  Liquidity rsk (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Assets

Statutory deposit
I , 5
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Unit linked assets
Reinsurance contract assets
Bank deposits with original
maturities of more than
three months
Deferred acquisition costs
Insurance and other
receivables (excluding
prepayments and deferred
acquisition costs)
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Liabilides

Insurance contract liahilities
Payable to policyholders of
unit-finked products
Insurance and other
payables (excluding lease
liabilities)

Lease liabilities

Total

Carrying Less than 1

Over 5 No maturity

amount year 1to 5 years years date Total
AED00D  AED00 AEDWO0 AEDM0 AEDOO0 AEDY000
10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
76,752 5,830 5,443 - 65,479 76,752
27 = a - 27 27
349,613 - 87,403 262,210 - 349,613
753,776 431,749 206,983 102,325 12,719 753,776
68,888 52,605 16,283 - - 8,888
20,871 20,871 - - - 20,871
311,292 311,292 - - - 311,292
205,667 205,667 - - - 205,667
1,796,886 1,028,014 316,112 364,535 88,225 1,796,886
1,008,371 581,681 265,991 133,652 27,047 1,008,371
349,613 - B7,403 262,210 - 349,613
252,757 252,757 - - - 252,757
6,855 3,034 3,821 - - 6,855
1,617,596 B37,472 357,215 395,862 27,047 1,617,596
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29, Financial Risk Management (continued)

292

As at 31 December 2021

Assets
Starutory deposit
L L

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Unit linked assets
Reinsurance contract assets
Bank deposits with original
maturities of more than
three months

Deferred acquisiion costs
Insurance and other
receivables (excluding
prepayments and deferred
acquisition costs)

Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Liabilities

Insutance conteact liabilities
Payable to policyholders of
unit-linked products
Insurance and other
payables (excluding lease
liahilities)

Lease liabilities

Total

Liquidity risk (continued)

Less than 1
year

Carrying

amount

1to5years Over 5 years

AEDT00  AED000 AEDO00  AED00

Mo marrity
date

Total

AEDD00  AED'000

10,000 - . . 10,000 10,000
47,871 11,102 11,956 . 24,813 47,871
17 ; = z 17 17
368,887 2 57,247 311,640 368,887
831,514 454251 203,254 174,009 831,514
205,965 189,204 16,761 . - 205965
19,061 19,061 . . . 19,061
330,686 330,686 " . - 330,686
91,881 91,881 - - - 91,881
1,005,882 1,006,185 280218 485,649 34830 1905882
1,105,249 623,339 267,890 214,020 - 1,105249
368,887 . 57,247 311,640 - 368,887
275,468 275,468 = : 275,468
32 32 - - 32
1,749,636 898830 325137 525,660 - 1,749,636
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29, Financial Risk Management (continued)
293  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual securiry, or its
issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Company's market risks arise from open positions
in (a) foreign currencies (b) interest bearing and (c) price risk assets and liabilities, to the extent they are exposed
to general and specific market movements. Management sets limits on the exposure to currency and interest rate
tisk that may be acceptable, which are monitored on a regular basis. However, the use of this approach does not
prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant market movements. The unit linked contracts
have not been considered for sensitivity of market rigk and as these are merely passed through contracts.

Sensitivities to market risks included below are based on a change in one factor while holding all other factors
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the factors may be correlated - for example,
credit spreads, changes in interest rate and changes in foreign currency rates.

Market risk drivers include equity prices, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The Company
limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in local
equity and bond markets. In addition, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect stock and bond
market movements, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

25.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a finanaal insttrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates and arses from financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency. The Company's functional currency
is the UAE Dirham.

The Company has also exposures in USD, to which the AED is pegged and the Company’s exposure to currency
risk is limited to that extent.

29.3.2 Interest rate rsk

Interest rate risk is the dsk that the valoe or future cash Hows of a financial instement will fluctuate becanse of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits. At 31 December 2022, bank deposits
carry fixed interest rates ranging from 1.5% to 8% per annum (31 December 2021: 0.15% to 8.5% per annum) and
therefore not exposed to cashflow interest rate risk,

29.3.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
{other than those arising from interest rate sk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The Company’s price tisk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will fluctuate as
a result of chanpes in marker prices, The Company’s equity price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by
setting and monitoring objectives and constraints on investments, diversification plans, sector and market. The
fair values of financial assets are not different from their carrying values,
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29, Financial Risk Management (continued)
203 Marlket risk {continued)

29.3.3 Price risk (continued)

Sensitivities

The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Company’s profit or loss and other comprehensive
income by type of business. The sensitivity analysis indicates the effect of changes in price risk factors arising from
the impact of the chanpes in these factors on the Company’s investments:

2022

Quoted debt investments
Quored equity investments
Investment in funds
Ungquoted equity investments

2021

Quoted debt investments
Quoted equity investments
Investment in funds
Unquoted equity investments

294  Operational risk

10% increase in price

10% decrease in price

FVIPL FVTOC]
AED0D AED000

1,197
6,242

236

1,645
2,024
736
382

FVTPL
AED000

(1,197)
(6,242)

(236)

(1,645)
(2.024)
(736)
(382)

FVTOCI
AED000

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead

to financial loss.

The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and
by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks.

The Company has detailed systems and procedures manuals with effective segrepation of duties, access controls,
authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff training and assessment processes etc. with a focus on
compliance and internal audit framework. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the
industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.
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29, Financial Risk Management (continued)
29.5  Classification of financial assets and liabilities

{(a) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and liability and their
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2022:

FVTPL EVTOCI Amortised Total
Cost
AED000 AED000 AED000 AED"000

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - - 205,667 205,667
Bank deposits with original maturities

of more than three months - - 68,888 (8,888
Statutory deposit - - 10,000 10,000
Investment securities 76,752 27 - 76,779
Insurance and other receivables - - 338,607 338,607
Unit linked assets 337,670 - 11,943 349,613
Total 414,422 27 (35,105 1,049,554
Financial liabilities:

Insurance and other payables - - 259,612 250,612
Payables to policyholders of unit

linked products 337,670 - 11,943 340,613
Total 337,670 - 271,555 609,225

(b) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and liability and their

carrying amounts as at 31 December 2021:
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total
COSst

AED000 AED000 AED000 AEDD00

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - - 91,881 91,881
Bank deposits with ordginal matutities

of more than three months - - 205,965 205,965
Statutory deposit - - 10,000 10,000
Investment securities 47 871 17 - 47.888
Insurance and other receivables - - 356,202 356,202
Unit linked assets 355,533 - 13,354 368,887
Total 403,404 17 677,402 1,080,823
Financial liabilities:

Insurance and other payables - - 275,500 275,500
Payables to policyholders of unit

linked products 355,533 - 13,354 368 BR7
Total 355,533 - 288,854 (44,387
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30. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 20 March 2023.

31 Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures were reclassified to match the current year’s classification. This re-classification has no
impact in the total assets, liabilities and accumulated losses of the prior year except as follow:

3 December 2021 -

as previously 31 December 2021 -
reported Reclassification  as currently reported
AED AED AED
Net chanpe in unearned premiums,
mathematical reserve and policyholders’
reserve (111,24% 34,678 {76,571)
Net earned premium 264,995 34,678 299,673
Total underwriting income 357,009 34,678 391,687
Net movement in reserve of unit linked
products 34678 (34.678) =
Total underwriting expenses (337,557} (34,678) (372,235)

32. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would significantly affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022,

77



H.Dti.”:l;_'i.ul £>
UNIONINSURANCE

UNION INSURANCE COMPANY

Public Joint-stock Company

Governance Report

For the Fiscal Year ending on 31/12/2022

Head Office: PO Box 119227 Dubai, UAE | Toll Free: 800 UIC4L (B4248) | info@unioninsurance.ae | www.unioninsurance.ae
(W oy sy o LV Al () o) .,j-.‘pt.'.‘n.]l.“ug.“.iul.rnlfl—'lh dszhlig [G9ASEM @ﬂ Aloun Aole figmlun e G500 @
Public Joint Stock Company Registered on 26/04/1998 and Subject to Federal Law MNo. (6) of 2007 (Licence No.67) -



Index

1. Description of actions taken to complete the Corporate Governance System during 2022, how to execute the

same,
2. Description of ownership and Transactions of the Board Members, their spouses and sons, as indicated in the
Company's Securities during 2022.
3. Board of Directors:
a.  Formation of the Board of Directors.
b. Percentage of female representation of the year 2022.
c.  Reasons why there are no nominated females at the Board of Directors.
d.  Bonuses and Attendance Allowances;
i. Total paid bonuses of the Board of Directors for the year 2022.
ii. Total proposed bonuses of the Board of Directors for the year 2022,
iii. Details of allowances, salaries or additional fees received by a Board Member other than the
atiendance allowances of Committees and the reasons thereof,
iv. Attendance allowances received by Board Members for the meetings of Committees
emanating from the Board for the Fiscal Year 2022,
e.  Meetings of the Board of Directors.
f. Description of Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors authorized to the Executive
Management.
g Details of ransactions with relevant parties.
h. Organizational Structure of the Company.
i. Detailed description of the Senior Executives,
4, External Auditor:
a.  About the External Auditor.,
b. Description of costs and fees of the External Auditor.
c. Remarks of the External Auditor for the year 2022,
5. Auditand Risks Committee:
a.  Acknowledgment by the Head of Audit and Risks Committee of his responsibility for the Committee's
system at the Company, review of its working mechanism and assurance of its effectiveness.
b.  Members of Audit and Risks Committee and description of their responsibilities and duties.
€. Meetings of Audit and Risks Committee.
6. Mominations & Bonuses Committee:
a.  Acknowledgment by the Head of Nominations & Bonuses Committee of his responsibility for the
Committee’s system at the Company, review of its working mechanism and assurance of its
effectiveness.

b. Members of Nominations & Bonuses Committee and description of their responsibilities and duties,



&

¢.  Meetings of Nominations & Bonuses Committee.
7. Committee of Follow-up and Supervision on the Transactions of the Insiders:
a.  Acknowledgment by the Head of Committee of his responsibility for the Committee’s system at the
Company, review of its working mechanism and assurance of its effectiveness.
b. Members of the Commitzee,
. Summary of the report of the Committee’s work during 2022
8.  Investment Committee:
a.  Acknowledgment by the Head of Committee of his responsibility for the Committee’s system at the
Company, review of its working mechanism and assurance of its effectiveness.
b. Members of the Investment Committee and description of their responsibilities and duties.
¢ Meetings of the Investment Committee,
9.  Internal Control System:
a. Acknowledgment by the Board of their responsibility for the Internal Control System at the Company,
review of its working mechanism and assurance of its effectiveness.
b. Mame, qualifications and date of appointment of the Managing Director.
c.  Name, qualifications and date of appointment of Compliance Officer.
d. How the Internal Control System handles any major problems at the Company.
e.  Number of reports issued by the Department of Internal Control System at the Company.
10. Derails of violations committed during the Fiscal Year of 2022, reasons and how to deal with the same.
11. Description of cash and in-kind contributions made by the Company in the development of local community
and preservation of the environment during 2022.

12. General Information.

About the Company

Union Insurance (UIC) is a national company licensed by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates and listed on the
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX); it was established in 1998 with paid capital of more than AED 331 Million. The
Company provides a comprehensive collection of insurance products to individual and corporate customers in the
Linited Arab Emirates and the Middle East. UIC also provides, under the leadership of a number of well-known expens

highly experienced in the insurance sector, an innovative insurance coverage and a distinguished value to its customers.

This includes bath standard and adjusted insurance policies that assist individuals, small and medium-sized enterprises,
aswell as large government entities to obtain reliable and cost-effective insurance coverage. In addition, the Company
provides insurance services such as risk assessment and gap analysis in insurance coverage under the supervision of

specialists with decades of experience.

Pravision of insurance coverage, including, but not limited to, life insurance, health insurance, vehicle insurance,

property insurance, engineering insurance, liabiliry insurance and marine insurance, UIC enables its customers to focus



on their core operations and reassuring them that they have successful and effective insurance policies thatena ble them

1o manage their various risks.

With a strong understanding of the ever-changing risk environment and insurance marker, the Company employs a
tearn of professionals who hold a fellowship centificate of the Chartered Insurance Institute, London (ACIH). This team
provides experience, knowledge and strong capabilities in structuring insurance covers to develop new and enhanced
insurance products. Since this team is of the Company’s employees, UIC can always offer its customers accurate

quotations.

Mareover, UIC has strong support from major global and local reinsurance companies, including Swiss Reinsurance

Company, SCOR Reinsurance, Hannover Reinsurance, Lloyds, Generali and GBA Europe.

Being distinguished by its focus on individuals, UIC nurtures institutional culture that emphasizes teamwork and a
cooperative environment that appreciates the contribution of each individual of the Company’s Personnel, which are
more than 300 competent employees. This environment provides the best service with a personal taste and puts the
customer in mind. This is a high priority for the Company, because generally when a customer makes a claim, he/she
has suffered from material loss or from another unfortunate event. Therefore, providing a service with a personal taste
is truly most welcomed. In addition to this focus on customer nurture, UIC has developed its claims processing and

paperwork to be as fast and simple as possible.

1. Description of actions taken to complete the Corporate Governance System during 2022, how 1o execurte the

same:
Based on the concept of governance, the Company pays great attention to the application of the highest standards of
governance based on and compliance with the applicable laws, regulations and decisions in the UAE, and the
Governance Guide for Public Joint-stock Companies issued pursuant to the Resolution No. (3/RM) of 2020 by the
Chairman of the Securities and Commodities Authority, which defined governance as "the set of rules and regulations
that achieve institutional discipline in relations and management ata company in accordance with global standards and
methods, by defining the responsibilities and duties of the Board of Directors and the Senior Executive Management of

a company, as well as taking into account protecting the rights of shareholders and stakehalders.”

Board of Directors has adopted the Company's governance framework and updated it whenever needed, to ensure

fallowing the best rules and practices and in a way that contributes to promating the growth of the Company and
achieving its objectives. Most prominent of these standards are as follows:

—  To comply with transparency and disclasure instructions in line with the laws and instructions issued by the

Securities & Commaodities Authority (SCA) that include all reports that must be disclosed, including interim and

annual financial reports, dates of the Board Meetings and the resolutions issued therein, as well as all the data

and statistics required by the SCA or ADX.



—  Board effectively manages the Company through the development of strategic objectives for the Company and

supervises their execution in cooperation with the Senior Executive Management, as well as supervising the
work of the Committees emanating therefrom in accordance with the controls of governance.
Board of Directors formed the permanent committees in accordance with regulations organizing the formation
of committees, such regulations include defining the duties, tenure and powers of the committee, as well as
fallowing up on the works of the committees periodically. The Board shall be responsible for the work of the
same,

—  Periodic review by the Board of Directors, in coordination with the Audit Committee, of the Internal Contral
System and Risk Management in the Company to ensure their effectiveness and to verify the Company’s and
its employees’ compliance with the applicable provisions and resolutions issued by the competent authorities.

— Toupdate and approve written rules regarding transactions of the insiders by the Board of Directors, prepare
a record of required infarmation about the insiders and to form a committee to follow-up, manage and
supervise the transactions of the insiders, as well as submitting periodic reports on such transactions to the
Securities & Commaodities Authority and the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange,

—  Company shall appoint an officer responsible for all duties in relation to Investor Relations Management, as
Mes. RIHAM OSAMA is considered as an Investor Relations Officer. In addition, an electronic link was created
on the Company's Wehsite that contains all necessary data, including financial reports and disclosures made
1o control and supervisary bodies.

—  Company shall submit an annual Governance Report and publish it on the website of the Securities &
Commaodities Authority. UIC has been keen to submit the annual Governance Report and make it available to
the shareholders, including all the main financial and non-financial data and actions taken each year.

—  To appoint an External Auditor and determine their fees by a resolution from the General Assembly in

accordance with the laws and regulations.

2. Ownership and Transactions of the Board Members, their spouses and sons, as indicated in the Company's
Securities during 2022:

Company shall comply with Resolution No. (2) of 2001 of the SCA Board regarding the system of trading, clearing,
settlement, transfer of ownership and custady of securities, where Article 14 thereof stipulates the following:
“Chairman and the Board Members, the General Manager or any of the Insiders who have access to material
information, of a company listed its securities in the market, are all banned from trading, by himself, for his account by
third parties or in any other capacity for the account of others, in the securities of the same company, the parent
company, subsidiary, affiliate or associate thereof, if any of these companies listed their securities in the market, during
the following periods:

®  Ten (10) business days prior to the announcement of any material information, which shall affect the price

of a share up or down, unless such information is a result of emergency or sudden events.
&  Fifteen (15) days prior to the end of the quarterly, semi-annual or annual financial period, until disclosure

of the financial statements”,



The Company shall also commit to Resolution No. (3) of 2000 of the SCA Board regarding the disclosure and

transparency system, as well as the resolutions and instructions issued by the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange. The

transactions of the Board of Directors and their first-degree relatives are as follows:

MName Position/Kinship | Owned Shares as on Total Sales Total
31/12/2022 Purchases
1 | ALSALEM CO.LTD, th_b er 66,710,022 N/A .._ﬁﬂ,?gﬂj 04
2 | SHEIKH NASSER BIM RASHID AL Member ] 10,000,000 M/A
MOALLA (Transfer within family )

3. Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors is composed of seven members whose term of office reaches three years. The members whose

term of office has ended may he re-elected for more than once; the General Assembly shall elect the members by secret

cumulative voting in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Union Insurance Company. The Board shall

exercise all the powers required to achieve the purpases and abjectives of the Company, except as preserved by the law

or the Articles of Association of the General Assembly. The Board is keen to carry out all the duties assigned to it in order

to ensure proper direction, guidance and management of the Company, which shall reflect positively on the overall

performance of the Company and shareholders’ rights.

a. Farmation of the current Board of Director:

The Company is managed by a Board of Directors composed of seven. The following is the formation of the current

Board of Directors and their term of office from the date of the first election:

Name Category Termasof | Qualifications & Expertise Being a Supervisory,
First Memberin Governmental
Election another PJSC | & Commercial
Date Positions
- Bachelor Degree from | Depury
Tulane University, London — | Chairman  of
Businessman. the  Marional
- He held the position of | Bank of Umm
Mr, MASSER BIM Depury Chairman and Head | Al Quwain,
RASHID BIN ABDUL of the Executive Committee | Head of the
ALIZ AL MOALLA — ooy = of Umm Al Quwain Bank | Executive i
Chairman since 1982, Committee, the
- Deputy Chairman of Umm | Credit
Al Curwain Cement | Committee and
Company from 1981 to | a Member of
2017, the




- Deputy Chairman of | Nomination
Sharjah Insurance from 2000 | and Bonus
until April 2021. Committee

- Received the Emiratization

Award for the Best CEO in

Banking Sector in the United

Arab Emirates,

- PhD in Imermnartional Law — | Board Member,
Jahnson and Wales | Head of the
University — LUSA, Risl

- Certified Public Accountant | Committee,

(CPA) — United Kingdom,
- Bachelor Degree in Applied

Member of the
Audit

University.

Arts in Business | Committee,
Administration and | Member of the
Marketing at the American Real Estare
College in London, England. | Valuation
- Bachelor Degree in | Review
DAL RASHID Economics  and Law, | Commitiee,
SULTAN AL KAITOUB Aljazeera University., and Member of
Independent 2021 ) MNSA
AL NUAIMI — Deputy - Diploma in Business | the
Chairman Administration Mominations
(EH/3676,/MIC) London | and Bonus
School of Commerce. Committee
- Senior Manager of the | from 15 March
Martianal Bank of Dubai from | 2020 to date at
2001-2007. the  Martional
- Board Member of the | Bank of Umm
Mational Islamic from 2005 | Al Quwain,
to 2007.
- CEQ of Emirates NBD
Properties from 2007 to
2017,
- bachelor's degree in | - Board
M. ABDULLAH

accounting and Economics, | Member of

MOHAMMED HASAN | Independent 2021 MN/A
Uinited  Arab  Emirates | Ajman Bank

AL HOSANI




R

- He has over 30 years of
experience in the banking

field

- Board
pember of the
Gulf  Cement
Company

- Board
Member of Ras
Al Khaimah Co.
for White
Cement  and
Construction

Marerials

- master's in business
administration (MBA)
From ESADE Business
School, Barcelona, Spain

- Partner in Al

Manara
Investment and

Development

Company
- bachelor's in
H : g - Board
mechanical engineering
{BSc), Minor in Member  of
Mr. AHMED SAEED nan- Engineering Management | gicates
: 2021 From American i N/A
ALANMI executive University of Sharjah Metallic
Industries Co.
- High School Diploma, y
The International School |~ Boar
of Choueifat, Bath, United | Member of
Kingdom Pinnacle
Resraurant &
Catering
Management
- Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration
from the American
University in Sharjah
M=, EMAN AL MIDEA !ndependcm 2022 P MN/A
- She held several positions
in Emirates Airlines, the latest
of which was Senior Director
of Revenue Improvement.
Mir. RAMEZ - Bachelor of Laws from Ain
Executive 2022 M M/A
ABOUZAID Shams University, Cairo,




&

- He has more than 30 years
of experience in the field of
insurance business in the
UAE,

- He held several positions in
the Senior Management in
Dubai  Mational  Insurance
and Reinsurance Company
for 25 years, during 1996-
2021 and the last seven
years as General Manager of
the company.

= Chief Executive Officer —
Hilal Takaful (¥as Takaful)
April 2021 — August 2021.

- Chief Executive Officer —
Insurance  House
2021 — February 2022.
- He  held

adminisirative positions in

August
several
the Emirates  Insurance
Association (Board member
— Member of the Higher
Technical Commitee —
Head of the Moror
Committee — Head of the
Legal Committee)

- He received many awards

in Insurance Secror

AL SALEM CO, LTD.,
represented by
MOHAMMED SALEM
ABDULLAH SALEM AL
HOSANI

nomn-

executive

2010

- Master of Science in
Financial Administration —
April 2011

- Bachelor Degree in
Electronic  Commerce —
Higher Colleges of

Technology, June 2005

-Managing
Director
Umm
Quwain
General

Investments

since 2007

of
Al




\
Ry

- Board of [he.
Gulf  Medical
Projects
Company

since 2005 .

An acknowledgment issued by each Member that the above information contained in Clause 2-3 are

correct.

b. Percentage of Female Representation of the year 2021:

Percentage of Female Representation at the Company's Board of Directors reached (14%) for the year 2022.

c. Reasons why there are no nominated females at the Board of Directors:

M/A

d. Bonuses and Attendance Allowances:

Articles of Association of the Company demonstrated the method for determining the bonuses of the Board Members
based on the provisions of Article (163) of Commercial Companies Law No. (2) of 2015, where the bonuses of the
Chairman and Board Members shall be calculated out of a percentage of the Met Profic it shall not exceed (10%) from

the Net Profit of the ended Fiscal Year after deducting Depreciation and Reserve.

i Details of Attendance Allowances received by the Board Member for attending meetings of the

Committees emanating from the Board for the Fiscal Year of 2022:

i Allowances for arrending meetings of the Committees emanaring
from the current Board
Member
Committee Name Allowance MNaos, of Total
Value Meetings Allowances

Mr. ALl RASHID AL | Head of the Audit 10,000 | a 80,000
KAITOUR Committee
Mr. ALl RASHID AL|  Memberof | 5000 3 15,000
KAITOUR Mominations

Committee
Mr. MOHAMMED SALEM Member of 5000 B 20,000
AL HOSAMI Mominations

Commitree




Mr. ABDULLAH SALEM AL Head of 10,000 50,000
HOSANI MNominations
Committee
Mr. ABDULLAH SALEM A!_ Member of Audit 5,000 40,000
HOSANI Committee
Mr. AHMED AL ALAMI Member of 5,000 45,000
Momirations
Committee
Mr. RAMEZ ABOUZAID Member of Audit 5,000 10,000
Committee

i, Details of allowances, salaries or additional fees received by a Board Member other than rthe

artendance allowances of Committees and the reasons thereof:

Mr. RAMEZ ABOUZAID, a Board Member, was assigned to carry out specific duties for the benefit of the

Nominations and Bonuses Committee and the Board of Directors on 01/07/2022, and then he was appointed

asa full-time Executive Member of the Company on 11/10/2022, where fees were paid for the additional work

assigned to him during 2022 with an amount of AED 212,096.

e, Meetings of Board of Directors during the Fiscal Year of 2022:
The Board of Directors held (4) meetings during 2022 as shown below:

- Meeting of the Board of Directors before the General Assembly and amending the structure of the

Member Meeting - Mos. of Mos. of Attendances
28/03/2022 Attendances by Proxy
| Mr. NASSER BIN RASHID AL MOALLA v 1 0
Mr, ALI RASHID AL KAITOUB v 1 0
M. MOHAMMED SAI.Eh-"-l;I_ HOSAMI v 1 0
Mr. ABDULLAH SALEM AL HOSANI v 1 0
Mr. AHMED AL ALAMI v 1 0
M, BASHAR AL ZOUBI b 4] 0
Meetings of the Current Board of Directors:
Member Meeting Meeting Meeting Mos. of Nos. of -
08/06/2022 | 03/11/2022 | 27/12/2022 | Awtendance | Awendances by

Proxy




| Mr. NASSER BIN RASHID AL i v v 3 1
MOALLA
Mr. ALI RASHID AL KAITOUB ¥ v v 3 0o
Mr. ABDULLAH SALEM AL v v Jf 3 0
HOSANI
Ms. EMAN AL MIDFA v v IEé 3 0o
Mr. MOHAMMED SALEMAL | ¥ v v 3 1 ]
HOSANI
Mr. AHMED AL ALAMI v v i 3 0
Mr. RAMEZ ABOUZAID = & % 2 0

v Artended X Apology -

f. Board of Directors Resolutions issued by circulation during the Fiscal Year of 2022;

(3) Resolutions were approved by Circulation for 2022

Resolution Date Resolution Mo,

Resolution by circulation on 13/05/2022 regarding the
approval of the Company's Financial Statements for the Resolution No. (1)

three-month period ending on 31/03/2022

Resolution by circulation on 08/08/2022 regarding the
approval of the Company's Financial Statements for the Resolution Mo, (2)
six-month period ending on 30/06/2022

Resolution by circulation en 11/11/2022 regarding the

approval of the Company's Financial Statements for the Resolution No. (3)
nine-month period ending on 30/09/2022

g. Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors authorized to the Executive Management:

MNo. MName of Authorized Person Authorization Term of Authorization
1 Mr. ABDULMUTALLAB MUSTAFA AL JAEDI Limited Sj]ecia.l Power of Undefined
Attorney

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law No. 2 of 2015, the CEO, as per a Special POA of the current Board, shall
exercise the powers required to conduct the Company's business, including;

1. To represent the Company before all natural and legal persons, ministries, authorities, committees, councils,

references, government and civil departments, chambers of commerce and industry, the Ministry of Economy,

the Ministry of Human Resources and Emiratization, the Departments of Economic Development,



Municipalities, the General Directorate of Residency and Foreigners Affairs, the interior authorities, Borders,
Ports, Customs, Traffic, Federal and Local Public Prosecutions, the Notary Public, Insurance and
Communication Companies.

Sign all conracts, transactions, communications and documents in relation o the Company’s business; to
submit and follow up any and all requests necessary or required by any competent authority, and o any
federal, municipal or governmental autharity whatsoever in or outside the United Arab Emirates.

To manage the Company's legal disputes by issuing instructions to the Company’s lawyers regarding the
submission of summonses, written regulations and before the Courts in the United Arab Emirates and other
countries of all kinds and degrees, enforcement and investigation departments, the Notary Public and judicial
committees for the settlement of rental disputes in any emirate in the United Arab Emirates, as well as taking
the necessary actions and procedures required 1o file and follow up cases, whether filed by or against the
Company; to take precautionary measures, notify and establish evidence, submit memoranda, requests,
protests, warnings, notifications, counterclaims, allegation of forgery, appointment of experts, request
cancellation of seizure, intervention as a third person, admission of other litigants; in admission, abandonment,
disbursement and receipt in the name of the Company exclusively; to appeal against judgments and decisions
by all ways of appeal, in addition to acknowledging and waiving the right claimed, conciliation, accepting and
requesting oath, and rejecting the same, abandoning litigation, relinquishing the judgment in whole or in part,
or by appealing against the same, lifting the seizure, or leaving the insurance while keeping debr, or allegation
of forgery, dismissal of the judge, arbitrator, or expert, or rejection or acceptance of the offer. He shall have the
right to receive all papers and notifications related to the Company from any governmental, non-
governmental, judicial or non-judicial entity and to serve notices to third parties. He shall have the right to
submit complaints on behalf of the Company before the Police, the Public Prosecution and the Courts, and to
waive the same after fulfilling the related rights, whether within the United Arab Emirates or other countries.
Moreover, the agent shall have the right to authorize and delegare whomever he wants from the Company’s
employees.

To sell, purchase and renewing cars and vehicles owned by the Company with the competent departments

inside and outside the UAE; to appeint whomever he wants in this regard from the Company's employees.

h. Details of Transactions with relevant parties during the Fiscal Year of 2022:

Details of transactions with relevant parties shall include joint-stock companies in the Union Insurance

Company and within the scope of insurance operations, including general insurances, motors and other

insurances, as follows:

Transactions of Relevant Parties

AED

Receivables

26,598,372 (has been fully allocated and is under lirigarion)

Ownership Shares Held

0

Tortal Claims Under Settlement

467,922

Investment Properties

72,270,000 (has been fully allocated and is under litigation)

Transactions
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Underwritten Premiums 1,200,815

Paid Claims 2447829

Fixed Deposits 45,256,000

Interest Income accruing from Bank Deposits 435,011 )
Banking Expenses 107,580

Rents 504,000

I- Organizational Structure:

Senior Leadership Roles

CEOQ Auckt CommiGea
Aol Mutlalat M. Al laedi bevaos (Board Commitian)
Grade - 14 Thmagg _ 1
1 s - fritesmal Ak
* 1 Compiiance & EAM
Prasident — Gansral Inaurance Pmaldent - L inpurance Head = Health Insurances Haad - Chigl Financinl Céicer 'ELI:BEI;?
Usmian Khagmi Kamal Chhalxa Mahmoud Shalah Famanathan Valdyanathan
Grage— 13 Grade - 13 Grada - 12 Grade =12
Head — Nan-Motor Claims
Head — Product Dovip Hoad = Uirderriting Finangial Contraliar
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b. Derailed description of the Senior Executives for 2022:
Position Joining Date Total Paid Salaries & Total Paid Bonuses Reserve for
Allowances for 2022 during 2022 forthe | Unpaid Bonuses
(AED) year 2021 for 2022 (AED)
(AED)
CEDQ 01,/08/2012 2,400,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Chairman - 16/10/2011 1,020,000 1,006,223
General
Insurances




g

Chairman — Life 16/09/2013 1,020,000 507,200
Insurance

cFo 01/08/2012 720,000 -
Head of Health |  01/08/2012 | 689,860 -
Insurance

Head of IT 08/09/2019 540,000 =
Head of | 01/0572019 540,000 -
Personnel & HR

Director of Legal 01/05/2013 720,000 -
Depr.

Director of Risk, 10/11/2013 420,000 -
Compliance &

Internal  Audit

Dept.

4. External Auditor

a. About the External Auditor

Grant Thornton has been appointed as the External Auditor of the Union Insurance Company under a resolution issued
by the General Assembly on 27/04/2022. Grant Thornton has been operating in the Unite d Arab Emirates for more than
55 years and has three offices in the UAE. It has 450 employees in addition to its wide spread around the world, as the
number of its international offices is 750 and it has approximately 62000 employees, as well as providing services to
many economic sectors. It should be noted that this is the first appointment of Grant Thorntan to audit the business of

the Union Insurance Company.

b. Costs & Fees of External Auditor:

The Annual General Assembly decided in its meeting held on 27/04/2022 to appoint M/s. Grant Thornton as
the Company's External Auditor for 2022, and their fees were determined at an amount of AED 375,000, as their

services included all professional services re levant to auditing the interim and ann ual financial reports.

Mame of Audit Office Grant Thornton
Partner Auditor M. Amjad Nassef
MNumber of service years as an External Auditor 1

of the Company

Total Audit Fees of Financial Statements of AED 375,000
2022
Fees and costs for Special Services other than AED 100,000 - relevant to the International

Auditing the Financial Statements of 2022 Financial Reporting Standard IFRS17




Details & Nature of other Services provided

Approval of the Insurance Authority's quarterly and
annual Electronic Forms, approval of the
Authority's Supervision Fees and approval of the
Abu Dhabi Health Authority's Forms, as well as
reviewing and approval of the quarterly Investment
Reports, Money Laundering reports in accordance
with the requirements of the Insurance Authority
regarding the preparation of the Annual Final

Reports.

Other Services performed by another External
Auditor during 2022

Providing services relevant to the application of the

International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS17

c. Remarks included by the External Auditor on Interim and Annual Financial Statements of 2022;

Mo remarks from the External Auditar.

5. Audit Committee:

(a) Acknowledgment by Head of Committee:

The Head of Committee Mr. ALI RASHID AL KAITOUB shall acknowledge his responsibility for the Committee’s system

at the Company, review of its working mechanism and the assurance of its effectiveness.

{b) Members of Audit and Risks Committee and a description of their Responsibilities and Duties:

Members of the Audit and Risks Committee:

MName

Pasition

Mr. ALI RASHID AL KAITOUB

Head of the Committee

Mr. ABDULLAH AL HOSANI

Mr. AHMED MANSOUR

Member

Member from outside the Board Memi;ers

Responsibilities and Durties of Audit Committee:

1. To recommend to the Board of Directors the nomination of the External Auditar, research and study the

aspects relevant thereto, which include the fees and conditions for hiring them.

2. To monitor and follow-up the independence and objectivity of the External Auditor, to discuss the nature,
scope of audit process and its effectiveness in accordance with the approved auditing standards, including
reviewing the quarterly and annual financial statements before issuance and to be reviewed as part of their

normal work, during the year and before closing the accounts in any quarter. It shall particularly focus on the

following:

a  Any :hanggs in accounting pul'tu:les and practices,

b. Tohighlight the areas subject to management discretion,
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t.  Material adjustments resulting from auditing,

d. Toassume the continuity of the Company's business.

e. Tocomply with the accounting standards set by the Securities and Commedities Authority.

e.  To comply with the rules of incorporation, disclosure and other legal requirements relevant to the

preparation of financial reports.

To coordinate with the Board of Directors of the Company, the Executive Management and the CFO, or the
Acting Manager, in order to perform its duties. The Committee shall meet with the auditors of the Company at
least once a year,
Tostudy the strategic plan and objectives of the Company proposed by the Executive Management and ensure
the extent to which the Company's Executive Management adheres to the strategic plan, policies and
procedures approved or required by applicable laws, regulations and instructions.
To consider any important and unusual clauses that are or should be set outin such reports and accounts, and
shall give due attention to any matters raised by the Company's CFO, the Acting CFO, the Compliance Officer
or the Auditars.
To review the Company's Risk Management Policies, examine the reasons for the Company's default, if any,
to review the notes contained in the Insurance Authority’s Reports and of the External Auditor Reports and to
follow up on the actions taken regarding the same.
To ensuring coordination between the Company's Control Department and the External Auditor, ensure the
availability of necessary resources for the Internal Control Authority, as well as reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of such Authority.
To consider the results of the main investigations in the internal control marters assigned to the Committee by
the Board of Directors, or initiated by the Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.
Ta review the Company's financial and accounting policies and procedures.
To review the External Auditor's message, work plan, and any substantial inquiries raised by the auditor to the
Executive Management regarding accounting records, financial accounts or control systems, and responding
to the same.
Toensure that the Board of Directors responds in a timely manner to the darifications and fundamental issues
raised in the External Auditor’s Report.
To ensure the application of the work rules relevant to its duties and powers entrusted to it by the Board of
Directors.
To monitor the extent to which the Company complies with the rules of professional conduct and report to the
Board of Directors on the issues mentioned herein.

To consider any other subjects set by the Board of Directors,

{c) Number of Meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee during the year, dates and the attendances of the

Members in person:
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Audit Commitzee held (8) meetings during 2022, a description of meetings and number of personal artendances is as

follows;

Number of personal atrendances of Audit and Risks Committee Members:

Audit and Risks Committee Meetings

09 March 2022

24 March 2022

25 April 2022

15 August 2022

06 September 2022

01 Movember 2022

10 November 2022

07 December 2022

Mumber of personal attendances of Audit and Risks Committee Members:

b
s Mir. ALI RASHID AL Mir. ABDULLAH AL Mr. RAMEZ Mr. AHMED
KAITOUB HOSANI ABOUZAID MAMNSDUR
Meeting Date
Meeting an 09 March v v B »
2022
i 4 March
Meeting an 24 Marc / - B y
2022
Meeting on 25 April
8 g v v = v
2022
Meeting on 15 P v v v
August 2022
Meeting on 06 v v . o
September 2022
Meeting on 01 3 ” " v
November 2022
Meeting on 10 7 Z " o
Navember 2022
Meeting on 07 s » X w
December 2022
Number of 4 i " .
Artendances




v Artended X

6. Momination & Bonuses Committes:;

a. Acknowledgment by Head of Committee:

Mot a Committee Member

The Head of Nomination & Bonuses Committee Mr. ABDULLAH AL HOSANI shall acknowledge his responsibility for

the Committee’s system at the Company, review of its working mechanism and assurance of its effectiveness,

b. Members of Nomination & Bonuses Committee and a description of their Responsibilities and Duties:

- Members of the Mominations and Bonuses Committee until 08/06/2022

= MName - Position
Mr. ABDULLAH AL HOSANI Head of Committee
Ms. ALIA FARID HARMOZI Member
Mr. MOHAMMED SALEM AL HOSANI Member
MAr. RHM:EI'] AL ALAMI Member
Mr. AHMED MANSUGR Member from outside the Board Members

- Members of the Nominations and Bonuses Committee after the amem] ment of the Committee’s Structure by
the Board of Directors after 08,/06,/2022

Mame Position
T Mr. ABDULLAH AL HOSANI Head of Committee
Mr. MOHAMMED SALEM AL HOSANI Member i
hr. AHMED AL ALAMI Member
Mr. AHMED MANSOUR Member from outside the Board Members

Responsibilities and Duties of Nomination and Bonuses Committee:

1.

To ensure the independence of the independent members on an ongoing basis. If the committee finds that one
of the members has lost the conditions of independence, it must refer the matter to the Board of Directors of
the Company, and the Board of Directors Must natify the Member by registered letter to its address kept by
the Company with justifications for his lack of independence, and the member must respond to the board of
directors within fifteen days from the date of notification. The Board of Directors shall issue a resolution
deeming the Member independent or nan-independent in the first meeting following the Member's response
or the expiration of the period referred to in the previous paragraph without a response.

If a member loses such capacity, this will not result in a breach of the minimum number of independent
members within the Board of Directors, and this must be taken into account in the formation of committees.
Without prejudice to the provisions of Article (145) of the Commercial Companies Law No. 2 of 2015, If the
Board's decision nullifies the reasons or justifications for the member's independence affecting the minimum

percentage that must be available from the independent members within the Board, the Company's Board of
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Directors shall appoint an independent member 1o replace this member, provided that his appointment is
presented to the Company's General Assembly to consider approving the Board's resolution.

The committee is responsible for preparing the policy for granting bonuses, benefits, incentives, and salaries
of the Company’s Board Member and employees. When developing these policies, the use of standards
relevant to performance shall be taken into account.

The Committee is responsible for preparing the policy for human resources and training in the Company,
monitoring its application, and determining the company's needs for competencies at the level of Senior
Executive Management and executive cadres in leadership positions with high qualifications, and the basis for
their selection and periodic review {including salaries and other benefits) and in line with bonuses/salaries
granted by similar companies in the market to ensure that the bonuses/salaries are sufficient to attract
qualified persons to work in the company in all locations with high levels and competencies.

Taking into account gender diversification within the formation of the Board Members in order to encourage

women to run for membership in the Board of Directors of the Company and to develop a policy for the same.

c. A description of the number of meetings held by the Committee during the Fiscal Year, the dares and the

attendances of the members in person:

Nomination & Bonuses Committee held 9 meetings during 2022; as follows a description of the meetings and number

of in person attendance:

Meetings of Nomination & Bonuses Committee
15 February 2022
07 March 2022
11 April 2022
14 June 2022

05 July 2022
02 August 2022
27 September 2022

08 Navember 2022
12 December 2022

Mumber of personal atrendances of Momination & Bonuses Commitee Members unil 08/D6,/2022;

M.
Member
Mr. ABDULLAH AL Mr. ALl RASHID AL | MOHAMMED Mr. AHMED Mr. AHMED
HOSANI KAITOURB SALEM AL SAEED AL ALAMI MAMNSOUR
Meeting Date
HOSAMI
Meeting on 15
v v v v
February 2022




Meeting on 07 March

: v v X /

2022

Meeting on 11 ﬂ.i&r!l

v v X v

2022

Number of
3 3 1 3
Artendances

MNumber of artendanT:E after the amendment of the Committee's Member Structure

Member Mr. ABDULLAH AL Mr. Mr. AHMED Mr. AHMED
HOSAMI MOHAMMED | SAEED AL ALAMI MANSOUR
SALEM AL
Meeting Date HOSANI
Meeting on 14 June
v v v v
2022
Meeting on 05 Jul
g on03 July 7 X v v
2022
Meeting on 02
2 v X v v
August 2022
Meeting on 27
§ y v v v
Seprember 2022
Mner.in on 08
8 v X v v
November 2022
Meering on 12
8 >, v v v
December 2022
MNumber of
¥ 2 B il
Artendances
v Attended X Apology

7) Committee of Follow-up and Supervision on the Transactions of the Insiders:

(a) Acknowledgment by Head of Committee:

The Head of Committee of Follow-up and Supervision on the Transactions of the Insiders Dr. AYMAN

ABDULRAZIQ shall acknowledge his responsibility for the committee’s system at the Company, the review of

its working mechanism and the assurance of its effectiveness.

{b) Mame of Commitree Members:

1. Dr. AYMAN ABDULRAZIQ — Director of Legal Department — Head of Committee

2. Mr. AMIT KATARIA — Director of Internal Control Department — Compliance Officer — Me mber



3. Mr. MOHAMMED RADI — Assistant Deputy Chairman — Financial Controller — Financial Department
& Accounts — Member

Responsibilities & Duties of the Committee:

—  The Committee shall be responsible for the managing, monitoring and supervising the transactions of
Insiders and their property, maintaining their record and submitting the periodic reports and
statements of the marker.

—  To maintain a record of all Insiders that include their statements and periodic declarations, and the
declarations submitted by the Board of Members.

—  Toinform regulatory bodies of any changes that occur in the record.

—  Toinform anyone of their status as soon as they become an insider and to obtain their signature on the
required forms,

—  Toinform Insiders of the periods of prohibition of trading specified by the marker upon receipr, along
with the other prohibitions periods approved by the instructions and circulars issued by the concerned
authorities, as well as clarifying the permanent and temperary prohibition periods.

—  To review and monitor the trading policies of Insiders, including periodic changes thereof, and 1o
receive and review reports of trading made by Insiders.

—  Toinform the Board of any trading conducred by the Insider in case of violation of the laws, regulations
and circulars issued in this regard and the actions taken and/or required in this regard.

— To maintain the confidentiality of informarion and dara provided by the Board of Direcrors.

(c) Summary of the Committee's work during 2022:

The Committee held a meeting on 14/10/2022 in the presence of all its members, where it reviewed the rules
concerning the transactions of Insiders by reviewing the trading reports of market, review the record of insiders,

follow-up the prohibitions periods determined by the market and ensure that the insiders are notified.

8) Investment Committee:

{a) Acknowledgment by Head of Committee:
The Head of Investment Committee Mr. NASSER BIN RASHID AL MOALLA shall acknowledge his responsibility for the

committee’s systern at the Company, the review of its working mechanism and the assurance of its effectiveness.

b) Members of Investment Committee and a description of their Respansibilities & Durties:

MName Pasition
Mr. MASSER BIN RASHID AL MOALLA Head of Commirttee
Mr. AHMED MANSOLUR Member from ourtside the Board Members
Mr. ABDULMUTALLAB MUSTAFA AL |AEDH Member from outside the Board Members i

Responsibilities & Duties of Investment Committee:




1. Todevelop and monitor the investment strategy and policy.

2. Ta prepare and discuss investment plans, review the fundamentals in relation to the nature of investment
activities, and to prepare a plan of action accordingly, in addition to making recommendations for the Board
of Directors.

3. Toreview the investment financial results and make the necessary recommendarions thereon.

4. Tomanage the Company's investments in accordance with the interests of the Company and the directives of

the Board of Directors.

{c) Mumber of meetings held by the Investment Committee during the year, the dates and attendances of the

members in person:

The Investment Committee did not hold any meeting during 2022.

9) Internal Control System:
{a) Acknowledgement by the Board of their responsibility for the Internal Control System at the Company, the

review of its working mechanism and the assurance of its effectiveness:

The Board shall acknowledge their responsibility for the Internal Control System at the Company, the review of its
waorking mechanism and the assurance of its effectiveness in accordance with the relevant laws, regulations and

resolutions of the Securities and Commodities Authority.

(b) The Managing Director & his Qualificarions:

A competent department for internal control was established, managed by Mr. AMIT KATARIA who was appointed on
10/11/2013, who also takes the responsibility of Compliance Officer, holder of a Bachelor of Commerce degree from
the University of Mumbai (Faculty of Commerce and Economics). He holds an ICAl certificate from the Indian Institute,
an AICPA certificate from the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Colorado, in addition to 12 years of

experience in auditing, compliance and risk management due to working for several insurance companies su ch as TATA

AlG and Universal Sompo Japan.

(c) Name, qualifications and date of appointment of Compliance Officer:

Mr. AMIT KATARIA takes the responsibility of Compliance Officer at the Company.

{d) How the Internal Control Department handles any major problems in the Company:

The Internal Audit Department shall prepare an annual plan to identify the risks and the degree of severity, and to review
and audit the various sections, departments and branches of the Company, where periodic reports shall be submitted
on the tasks performed to the Audit Committee, which are presented to the Board of Directors, as well as a plan that
aims at handling or limiting violations, if any. Noting that the Internal Control Department did not encounter any

problems at the Company during 2022.

(e} The number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department:




The number of reports issued by the Intérnal Control Department during 2022 reached nine reports.

10) Details of violations committed during the Fiscal Year, the reasons and how to deal with them, and the wa

to avoid reoccurrence in the future:

Mo Violations

11) A description of cash and in-kind contributions made by the Company in the development of community

and preservation of the environment during the year 2022:

The company launched an initiative 1o donate clothes with the DAR AL BER Charitable Authority in all of the company’s

offices and branches, and we provided the authority with 7 full boxes of clothes.

We also launched an initiative to donate unused medicines in cooperation with the Dubai Health Authority, we

donated: 600 tablets, & boxes of syrup, 100 lancets and 50 glucose meter strips.

The Company continued its initiatives to recycle paper and HP ink cartridges in its offices across the UAE, in order to
reduce the Company's impact on the environment, as it recycled more than 7714 kilos of paper and 2626 ink cartridges

until the end of 2022,

Maoreaver, the Company started recycling plastic water bottles in all offices in 2022 in order to reduce the impact of our
business on the environment by reducing carbon dioxide emissions and saving energy and water. We recycled nearly

5,000 water bottles of 500 ml, which is equivalent to 100kg of plastic.

12. General Information:

{a) Description of the Company's share price at marker (closing price, highest price, lowest price) at the end of

each month during the Fiscal Year 2022:

Month High Low Last Close
Jan-22 0720 0.720 0.720
| Feb-22 0,700 0.700 0.700
Mar-22 0.700 0,660 0,660
Apr-22 0600 | 0600 0.600
 May-22 0.600 0.600 0.600
 jun22 0.690 0.621 0,621
jul-22 0,690 0.621 0.621
Aug-23 0,690 0621 0.621
Sep-22 0,559 0.600 0650 |
a2 0,540 0,520 0.540
Nov-22 0.500 0,550 0.570
Dec-22 0.632 0,632 0,632




Source: ADX Website

b)) Description of the comparative performance of the Com s share with the General Markert Index and

the Sector Index to which the Company belongs during 2022:

Manth Insurance ADX Market LInian Insurance
Sector
[ Jan22 0 0 0.72
Feb-22 0 L] 0.70
Mar-22 0 0 0.66
Apr-22 0 0 0.60
May-22 0 0 0.60
Jun-22 0 0 0.62
Jul-22 0 0 0.62
Aug-22 0 0 0.62
Sep-22 0 0 (.65
QOer-22 0 L] 054
Now-22 0 0 057
Dec-22 0 0 Q.63
Index Values 2022 - Insurance Sector, ADX Market & Union Share Price
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{c) Description of Shareholders’ Equity as on 31/12/2022 (Individuals, Companies, & Governments) classified

as follows: Local, Gulf, Arab, & Foreign:
Mo, Sharehalder Shareholding

Classification Individual Companies | Government Total

1 | Local 120,919,549 197,059,375 0 317,978,924




2 | Gulf 160,165 0 0 160,165

3 | Arab 70680 0 0 70,680

4 | Foreign 329,411 12,400,000 0 12,729,411
5 | Torl 121,479,805 | 209,459,375 0 330,939,180

{d) Description of Shareholders holding 5% or more of the Company's Capital as on 31/12/2022:

MNo. Shareholder Mame Mo. of Shares Shareholding %
1 | SALEM ABDULLAH SALEM AL HOSANI 76614519 2315%
2 | ALSALEM CO. LTD. 66,710,022 20.16%
3 | UMM AL QUWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENT COMPANY PSC 65,179,710 19.70%
4 | GULF GEMERAL INVESTMENT COMPANY 22,943,161 6.93%
5 | GULF FALCONS GENERAL TRADING LLC 20,055,020 6.06%

() Distribution of Shareholders in accordance with the size of ownership as on 31/12/2022:

No. Shareholding (Share) No. of Shares | No. of Shares Owned Sharehalding
| 1| Less than 50,000 12,992,931 2017 3.9%
2 | From 50,000 up o less than 500,000 5,237,738 43 1.6%
3 | From 500,000 up to less than 5,000,000 289126,390 14 8.8%
4 | Ower 5,000,000 283,582,121 9 85.7%
TOTAL 330,939,180 2,083 100.0%

(F) Actions taken with regard to the Controls of Investor Relations:
Ms. RIHAM OSAMA was appointed as Investor Relations Officer, who holds a Bachelor of Commerce, Accountancy

Degree, from Ain Shams University, has a Master in Marketing from Liverpool University. You can contact her easily
through the information posted on the Company's website (Riham Ozama — riham.o@unioninsurance.ae — Tel No.

+071 4 378 7609).

An electronic link was also created on the Company's website:

(heeps://www.unioninsurance.ae/en/about ws/#/InvestorRelations), through which all financial reparts, Company

news, developments and related events can be viewed.

{g) Special Resolutions presented to the General Meeting during 2022 and the actions taken thereon:

- Amendment to Article No. (5) of the Company’s Articles of Association was approved at the General Assembly Meeting

held on 27/04/2022, as the amendment stipulated the addition of the following paragraph:
9. Investing in securities of all kinds - except for financial derivatives for non-hedging purposes - issued by public and

private joint-stock companies inside and autside the UAE, as well as real estate investment inside the UAE, all within the



regulatory rules and procedures issued by the relevant regulatory authorities. The system was amended accordingly,

and the amendment was included on the Company’s website.

h) Rapporteur of the Board of Directors and Date of Appointment:
Ms. RANIM FAJR MAHMOUD, who was appointed on 29/09/2021 by the Board of Directors, shall undertake the duties

of the Rapparteur of Company's Board of Directors.

(i) The Company's significant events during 2022:

- During the General Assembly meeting, a Board Member of Al Baraka Investment Company, represented by
Mr. Bashar Al Zoghbi, was dismissed. In addition to approving the appointment of Ms. Eman Al Midfa as a
Board Member.

- Al Salam Company Lid. has expressed its intention to submit an acquisition offer to all the Company's
Shareholders with the aim of increasing Al Salam Company's share in the ownership of the Company.

- The Company made an initiative with Noon to give employees and customers a cash discount on their
purchases from Moon and Sivvi.

- The Company added new programs in the Value-added Balsam Program.

(i) Transactions carried out by the Company during 2022, which are equal to 5% or more of the Company's

Capital:
N/A

k) Description of the percentage of Emiratization by the end of 2020-2021-2022:

Percentage of Emiratization in the Company for 2020 reached (9.8%)
Percentage of Emiratization in the Company for 2021 reached (10.1%)
Percentage of Emiratization in the Company for 2022 reached (11.06%)

{1 Innovative Projects and Initiatives carried out by the Company or under development in 2022:

The Company did not carry out Innovative Projects or Initiatives during 2022,

Position Signature Date
Chairman = X . =
Head of Audit Committee =
Head of Momination & Bonus Committee ____"'.-——'-r;'-"-jf?’L
Director of the Internal Control Department f :
A -

{Pages are numbered from 1 1o 23)
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Introduction

About this report

We, Union Insurance company, are pleased to issue our Sustainability report for
the year 2022. Through this report, we are highlighting our capabilities and
achievements that comply with the ESG values and objectives.

This report has been issued in compliance with the disclosure guidance set by the
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange on Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG)
Disclosures for listed companies.

About us

Union Insurance was established in 1998 with a paid-up capital of over AED 330
million. It is licensed by the Central Bank of UAE and listed on the Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange, with its corporate office located in Dubai.

At Union Insurance, we provide a comprehensive range of retail and commercial
insurance products to clients in the UAE, as well as the Middle East. Led by some
of the most experienced and respected professionals in the industry, we make it a
point to offer innovative, superior-value insurance coverage.

This includes both standard and customised policies to help individuals; small,
medium, and large enterprises; and government entities, obtain reliable and cost-
effective insurance covers. We offer additional insurance services as well. They
include risk assessment and gap analysis of insurance coverage, conducted by
professionals with decades of experience.

Our comprehensive coverage in areas including (but not limited to) life, health,
automobiles, property, engineering, liability and maritime, frees our clients to focus
on their core operations, and gives them the surety of having robust insurance
policies to manage various risks.

We have obtained ISO 14001, ISO 45001, ISO 9001 and ISO 10002 certification.

Mission
To deliver innovative, high-value insurance products that provide better risk
management solutions to individuals, companies and governments.



Vision
To be the trusted insurance provider in the United Arab Emirates and wider Middle
East region.

Values
Empowerment- Equal Opportunity- Friendship- Innovation- Quality- Reliability-
Social Responsibility- Teamwork- Trust
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Financial Stability

Highlights

Management

Union Insurance management’s collective experience and its low turnover for the
past decade has positively impacted the company progress and instilled
confidence in its direction and business strategy.

Union management team comprises well experienced and qualified senior
professionals. All the key positions such as in Underwriting, Finance and
Accounting, Legal, Actuary, IT and Business are filled with professionally qualified
personnel.

Reinsurance Arrangements

Union is supported by a panel of leading reinsurers who have long standing
arrangements with the company. This has helped in sustaining the financial
stability of Union.

Key Performance Indicators 2021 2022
AED'000 AED'000

Gross Written Premium 900,083 868,317
Net Earned Premium 299,673 317,373
Reinsurance Ratio 58.2% 58.1%
Net Claims Incurred Ratio 50.7% 47.3%
Combined Ratio 97.4% 96.1%
Return on Average Equity 5.8% 7.5%
SCR Solvency Margin Surplus/(Deficit) (2,336) 20,123
Solvency Ratio 98.3% 114.1%

Solvency and Investments
UIC’s solvency position remains healthy, with a regulatory solvency margin surplus
of AED 20.1 million.

The company monitors its solvency position regularly.



Rating

Union Insurance has a B+ rating from AM Best which reflects the company’s
financial stability and capability to pay the claims based on its balance sheet
strength, operating performance, business profile and enterprise risk
management.

Claims Management

As our business is providing coverage mainly in the UAE, we are aware that this
a population of expatriate majority. Our commitment to ensuring that claims are
paid quickly and sufficiently is therefore enhanced as an individual or company’s
financial losses incurred due to an insurable event may force them to leave this
country. The claims we pay towards Healthcare, Credit, Property and Liability are
examples of where our company has helped individuals and company’s suffering
from financial losses by providing them with payments, either on indemnity basis
or fixed sum assured and contributing to the economy by doing so.

In turn, we have developed products and incorporated coverages that are
deemed attractive to policyholders given the potential associated financial loss,
such as involuntary loss of earnings options, whilst ensuring that terms and
condition are clear and concise, increasing transparency to customers, which
contributed to the sustainability of the company.

The table below summarises our claims experience over each of the last 5 years.
Our performance has been consistent across all years, with net loss ratios
between 45-55%, demonstrating our stability and sustainability.

Net Claims Analysis AED'000s

Incurred Earned

Loss Year Claims Premium Loss Ratio
2018 186,071 389,999 48%

2019 159,640 320,430 49%

2020 130,610 289,773 45%

2021 161,502 301,967 53%

2022 168,128 311,566 54%
TOTAL 803,951 1,613,734 50%

Our incurred claims represent the total claims expected, including claims already
paid. Our future estimates are based on recent experience, which are updated on
a quarterly basis in case of any adverse experience. This is done to minimize
unexpected claims and ensure sustainability in the long term. This demonstrates



our continued commitment of ensuring that policyholder liabilities are met
appropriately.

Further, our efficient underwriting processes result in healthy loss ratios, ensuring
that we have sufficient funds to cover the fixed and variable expenses associated
with the business. This is vital to ensure our business remains sustainable.

coVvID
Although COVID claims have substantially reduced in 2022 but we have continued
to cover the financial costs with respect to the impact of Covid on health.

In Health insurance, we have responded to 100% of the suspected and reported
Covid cases and paid total claims of AED95,815 till 31 December 2022.

In Life insurance, we have also contributed towards the welfare of the society and
the economic growth by compensating the beneficiaries for the losses incurred by
the pandemic. In 2022, we paid a total AED AED 271,624.57 in Covid related life
insurance claims



Corporate Governance

Business Continuity
Our business continuity plan ensures that we are prepared for any disruption.

One of the key focus in our BCP and Disaster Recover is the recovery of a
company's IT system after a crisis considering the Recovery Point Objective and
Recovery Time Objective. In order to achieve this, we have a detailed backup
policy along and our primary data center is situated in Dubai with Disaster
Recovery in Abu Dhabi.

Compliance

The Compliance and Corporate ethics policies have been implemented and these
are our enabler in sustainability framework. The Regulatory areas are given
outmost priority and adherence to regulatory Compliance requirements are always
ensured. The Corporate Code of conduct policy has been revised and updated
from time to time and implemented for all employees and Board of Directors and
the compliance to this is being monitored. We have robust and comprehensive
process for handling all relevant regulatory and compliance requirements including
submission to the Regulatory bodies. The dedicated Compliance team as part of
UIC line of defense is formed to Liaise with Regulatory bodies and responsible for
Compliance Monitoring framework. Following are the key highlights related to UIC
Sustainability in Compliance:

UIC Compliance Manual

Code of Conduct and Ethics Policies

Anti-Money Laundering Policy

Automation of AML Screening Process

Effective Corporate Governance Framework

Compliance Management System with Regulatory Repository
Compliance Owners and Compliance monitoring Controls
Compliance Training to Employees

NN~

Risk Management

The goal of UIC Risk Management process is to ensure that the operations which
expose us to risk are consistent with our Strategy /Business plans and overall Risk
philosophy while maintaining an appropriate balance between risk/ reward and
enhance the stakeholders value. The Insurance processes are designed within the
Risk Management framework to ensure assessment of risks prior to underwriting.

The Risk Management principles are embedded in UIC Operational and Financial
Processes and further mitigation/controls are assigned for the risks which are



having impact on UIC Operational Processes. From a Governance perspective
and tone at a Top, the Board monitors the overall UIC Risk Management
framework , process and practices and approves the overall Risk Appetite. The
Audit Committee & the Risk Committee of the Board has primary oversight over
Enterprise Risk Management and Senior Management share responsibility and
accountability for effective management of Risks across the Organization. The
Risk Committee has now been segregated from the Audit Committee. The Risk
registers of all the key processes like Underwriting, Operational, Financial and
Regulatory areas are developed with the Mitigation/Controls. Further the Emerging
risks are also monitored for risk exposure and time to time communicated within
the Risk owners to have adequate controls in their area of Operation. The
qualitative and Quantitative approach is being followed for assessment of risks and
monitoring the Risk exposure for each type of risk category. Following are the key
highlights related to UIC Sustainability in Risk Management:

Audit Committee & Risk Committee Oversight Role

Risk Committee has been segregated from the Audit Committee

ERM Procedures are reviewed and updated

Enterprise wise Risk Register with Mitigation Controls and Regular Risk
Assessment

Risk Management (GRC) system

Risk Appetite and Tolerance Limits

Risk Culture with the Functional Departments

Key Risks exposure assessment and Monitoring

N~
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Distribution Channels

In addition to our 8 offices and branches across the UAE, Union utilises a number
of diversified channels ensuring sustainability, reduction in costs and continued
growth. A budding channel is social media where we started to engage with our
customers through five platforms (Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn, Twitter and
WhatsApp).

Digitalization & Transformation

¢ Our digital transformation strategy ensures that technology is harnessed to
cater to our customers evolving needs and enhance our operational
efficiencies. We received Best Digital Transformation and Innovation of the
Year Awards.

e We enable our stakeholders to engage with us through various digital
platforms which ensures sustainability in the digital era. We believe in



providing self servicing capabilities through our various B2C & B2B Portals
along with automations in the area of Claims, Quote Generations,
Business Analytics etc.

o With digitization rises the need of data security and customer data
protection. We adhere to NESA, ADHICS Standards and have a
comprehensive Information Security policy. We cleared the recent audit
conducted by ADHICS.

e We also have 1ISO27001, NESA, SOC Compliant Data Centre. Our multi-
layered security architecture protects from cyber-attacks and Intrusion
attempts.

e One of the key focus in our BCP and Disaster Recover is the recovery of a
company's IT system after a crisis considering the Recovery Point
Objective and Recovery Time Objective. In order to achieve this, we have
a detailed backup policy along and our primary data center is situated in
Dubai with Disaster Recovery in Abu Dhabi.

e We have an efficient approach to date backup and recovery. We keep a
secure storage of data that prevents loss and permits timely restoration.

- -

PROCESS AUTOMATION TECHMICAL UPLIFTS

Forusg on better custormsr
caperience using enhanced
LU of Applications with
consideration of Mobile First
approach.

Webise optimized lor S2arch
Engines with Analythcs on
user nayvigathon pattemns,

= Enhanced Customer

Communication.

|PCcrease i Seraang
Touchpaints for Individuals
and Partners using Customer
Seif Sorvice [ Pariner Portals
and Whatwhpp sendoe.

= On the fly Quote generated

by Custommer/ Partners/Sales,

Customers can buy Policy
Ondfine, Aenow Policy,
Register Claims and Track

their chaims.

Erv-End Auromathon of various
processes like;

= Nogtor Cladms process.
* AML process

*  Lhe Cases identified for

techrologies like RPA, OCR for
autemating routine task in areas

of Fnance, Health, Life and
Regulazory,

Kmeping up the curve with
thie latest technology and
bhusiness niveds;
upgrades{revamp of

= Health, Finance and Life Core

ysEms

Technical Refresh of Network
Dewices, Softwase, 05 and
Laptops, Desdtops

= Emhanced Security

Bl/ANALYTICS

Lislng advanoe anabytcal
salutionsg fife Power 8i,
various Cperational and
Management MIS have
been published.

Roadimap is towards Snghe

view of customer and
predictive analysis

10



Social Responsibility
Social Initiatives by UIC

Under our value-added service, Balsam, we continue to sign up new partnerships
to provide our clients with several carefully designed programs that provide relief
to certain areas that aren’t covered under traditional health insurance policies. We
have initiated a project to facilitate the access to these services by creating an
online platform to ensure 24/7 availability.

During the holy month of Ramadan, we organised once again clothes donation
campaign with Dar Al Ber Society. Collection boxes were placed in all of our offices
and we were able to donate 7 full boxes to the charity organisation.

In collaboration with our Health Department, we organised a campaign for unused
medications to distribute it to the needy who cannot afford the treatment, ensure
safe disposal of medicine and increases awareness of the importance of avoiding
medicine wastage to reduce financial and environmental impact. In total, we
collected approximately: 600 tablets, 6 syrup bottles and 100 lancets & 50 Glucose
test strips which were given to DHA or any registered UAE charities.

Employees

Ensuring employee wellness is an important objective at Union Insurance. The
management is actively involved in identifying and adopting/implementing policy
changes that benefit our employees.

As part of promoting a healthy corporate culture and emphasising the importance
of physical activity, we have supported our 31 employees who joined the Dubai
run on Nov 20.

In line with the federal government initiative, we continued to promote a work life
balance by adopting a 4.5 day work week.

We have also tied up with Noon to offer our employees and their families discounts
on their purchases on Noon and Sivvi's websites.

Union also issues a bi-monthly staff magazine, Al Nabaa, to facilitate employee

engagement where they learn about each other’s achievements and personal
milestones.
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Diversity and Inclusion

Our Diversity and Inclusion framework helps UIC to target initiatives and improve
diversity and inclusion across the corporate. UIC is committed to developing
policies, practices, and ways of working that support diversity. Employees from
over 22 different nationalities are currently working at UIC.

Equal opportunity is offered at UIC and women noe form 38% the workforce, up
2% from 2021.

All employees are evaluated basis their contribution to their respective teams and
the organization. The organization also complies with all the statutory requirements
listed by the Ministry of Labor.

Women in Leadership

We have emphasized on identifying female successors for leadership roles,
provide development opportunities. The female member of the broad make 14%
of total members.

As an organization, we help nurture and grow individuals to lead senior positions
like Branch Managers, Actuarial Services, etc...

Emiratisation

Inspired by the UAE Vision 2021 that aims to empower UAE nationals to drive
economic growth by increasing their participation in the labour market, we are
firmly committed to nurturing and developing the local Emirati community for the
long-term benefit of our business and the national economy. In 2022, 10.7% Of
our workforce are UAE nationals and we continue to develop Emirati talent and to
meet the regulatory requirements of Emiratisation.

Training and Career development

A New Joiner Orientation (NJO) is the first training session that all employees go
through. This session is aimed to help the employees get better acquainted with
the organization structure and technical areas/departments.

Post the NJO, each department head puts the employee through a training
program/period. This is managed directly by the department and is customized
basis the role and career level of the individual. The objective is to ensure that the
employees is coached by experienced team members on the tasks and process
using real life examples and situations. This also allows the employees to
understand their role, responsibilities, and key performance areas.

We also provide annual online training for AML and IT Security via our inhouse
training platform.
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Environmental Responsibility

Energy Efficiency
We aim to be energy efficient at Union in line with the UAE’s direction to reduce
emission.

We have LED energy efficient lights in our local offices and the air conditioning is
programmed to switch off when no one is in the office. We have also instilled a
culture where our staff switch off the lights before they leave.

Paper

We are continuously introducing initiatives that help reduce our environmental
footprint across our local offices. We also engage employees through eco-friendly
awareness and education to be more environmentally responsible.

We strive to conduct our business in a manner that causes no harm to the
surrounding living environment. As we are taking significant steps in our digital
transformation process, we are reducing the use of paper. Our customers can buy
policies online as well as submit their claims. This has also helped in reducing air
pollution as fewer customers find it necessary to visit our offices for insurance
services.

We have tied-up with Greenbox to recycle paper across our offices. In 2022, we
have recycled 666 kg of paper.

Ink cartridges
We are a member of HP Planet Partners for recycling used ink cartridges and till
31 December 2021 we have recycled 2626 ink cartridges.

In some select departments, black and white printers have replaced color printing
for a more environmental-friendly printing as it reduces consumption of ink.

Water Bottles

We have started recycling plastic water bottles across our offices in 2022 to to
help reduce the impact of our business on the environment by decreasing carbon
emission and saving energy and water. We recycled approximately 5000 water
bottles (500 ml) which is equivalent to 100kgs of plastic. Employees were also
encouraged to bring bottles from their homes.

13



